
 
AGENDA 

 
BOARD OF EXAMINERS FOR NURSING 

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH 
April 19 2023 - 8:30 AM 

 
Note: The meeting is to be conducted solely through the use of electronic equipment. 

 
 
 

Chair Updates 
Additional Agenda Items and Reordering of Agenda 
Open Forum 
National Council of State Boards of Nursing/ - Update 
 
MINUTES 

• June 15, 2022, July 20, 2022, November 16, 2022 
 
THE CONNECTICUT CENTER FOR NURSING WORKFORCE, INC – Monthly Update 
 
NEW BUSINESS 

• Board of Examiners for Nursing – August 23, 2023 
 
SCHOOL ISSUES 

• Stone Academy Update – Sean Seepersad, Office of Higher Education 
• Unites States Department of Education – Jennifer Uhlir 
• Arizona College of Nursing – Leadership Transition 
• CT Center for Nursing Workforce, Inc. – Analysis of 2022 Student Data of CT RN and LPN Pre-Licensure 

Programs 
• Eastern Connecticut State University – Notice of Intent to Establish a Baccalaureate Degree in Nursing 
• Griffin Hospital School of Allied Health Careers – Approval for Second Campus 
• Goodwin University – Notice of Intent to Begin a Licensed Practical Nurse Program 
• Quinnipiac School of Nursing – Application for Permanent Waiver, Tina M. Pascoe, RN, BSN, MHA, JD 
• Quinnipiac School of Nursing – Application for Permanent Waiver, Giuseppina M. Violano, BSN, MPH, PhD 
• ReNurse Academy – Licensed Practical Nurse Refresher Course  

 
MEMORANDUM OF DECISION 

• Danielle Dragon    Reinstatement Request  
• Rachel Pisani    Petition Nos. 2021-1209, 2021-1223 
• Lisa Simon    Petition No. 2021-578 

MOTION FOR CONTINUANCE 
• Christine Trombino, RN*  Petition No. 2020-895   Staff Attorney Aden Baume 

 
REQUEST FOR LICENSE REINSTATEMENT HEARING 

• Katie Ann Martins 
 
CONSENT ORDERS 

• Lisa N. Haut, APRN, RN  Petition Nos. 2021-1196, 2022-899 Staff Attorney Linda Fazzina 
 

PREHEARING REVIEW 
• Kathleen D. Cataford, RN  Petition No. 2022-423   Staff Attorney Joelle Newton 

 



Page 2 of 2 
 
 
 
 
HEARINGS 

• Selena M. Acocella, LPN, RN  Petition Nos.2020-977, 2021-190 Staff Attorney Aden Baume 
• Nicole Slonski, LPN*    Petition No. 2022-1019   Staff Attorney Linda Fazzina 
• Tiona A. Stewart, LPN*   Petition Number: 2023-151  Staff Attorney Aden Baume 

 
* Currently Summarily Suspended  

 
Board of Examiners for Nursing – (Meeting/Hearings) via Microsoft TEAMS 

Join on your computer, mobile app or room device 
Click here to join the meeting 
Meeting ID: 221 604 505 926  

Passcode: icczHy 
Download Teams | Join on the web 

Or call in (audio only) 
+1 860-840-2075,,526901904#   United States, Hartford 

Phone Conference ID: 526 901 904# 
 

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_MDUwNDliNzYtMzZjYi00NGU5LWI2MjgtYWMyMWRlZDFkNzA0%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%22118b7cfa-a3dd-48b9-b026-31ff69bb738b%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%220b0f62d5-4356-48ee-aa9d-1c122d2412f6%22%7d
https://www.microsoft.com/en-us/microsoft-teams/download-app
https://www.microsoft.com/microsoft-teams/join-a-meeting
tel:+18608402075,,526901904#%20


 
The following minutes are draft minutes which are subject to revision and which have not yet been adopted by the Board. 

 
The Board of Examiners for Nursing held a meeting on June 15, 2022 via Microsoft TEAMS. 

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT: Patricia C. Bouffard, RN, D.N.Sc. - (RN Member, Chair) 
Cynthia L. Arpin, RN, MSN – (RN Member) 
Joseph Bierbaum (Public Member) 
Jason Blando - (Public Member) 
Lisa S. Freeman, BA - (Public Member) 8:40 a.m. 
Mary E. Dietmann, EdD, APRN, ACNS-BC, CNE - (RN Member) 8:41 
a.m. 
Geraldine Marrocco, Ed.D., APRN, ANP-BC, FAANP - (RN Member) 
Gina Reiners, PhD, APRN, PMHNP, PMHCNS - (RN Member) 

     Rebecca Martinez, LPN – (LPN Member) (9:10 a.m.) 
 

 
BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT: Jennifer C. Long, APRN, MSN, NNP-BC - (APRN Member)  
 
ALSO PRESENT:   Stacy Schulman, Legal Counsel to the Board, DPH 
     Jeff Kardys, DPH 

Dana Dalton, RN, Supervising Nurse Consultant, DPH  
Helen Smith, RN, Nurse Consultant, DPH 
Joelle Newton, Staff Attorney, DPH  
Aden Baume, Staff Attorney, DPH 
 
 

 
The meeting commenced at 8:30 a.m. All participants were present via Microsoft TEAMS. 
 
Chair Updates – no updates  
 
Additional Agenda Items and Reordering of Agenda 
 

Motion to approve agenda as revised for June 14, 2022 was unanimously approved, upon motion by 
Joseph Bierbaum and seconded by Gina Reiners.   

 
Open Forum  - No Update 
 
National Council of State Boards of Nursing – Update 
 

Chair Bouffard and Mary Dietmann provided an update on the NCSBN education consultant call on 
June 9, 2022. 

 
CONNECTICUT LEAGUE FOR NURSING – Bi-Monthly Update 
 

The Board received an update from Marcia Proto of Connecticut League for Nursing and the 
Connecticut Center for Nursing Workforce and from Audrey Beauvais on behalf of the Deans and 
Directors.  Audrey Beauvais’ term is up for the Deans and Directors and her replacement will attend 
future meetings.  Marcia thanked Audrey for her time and service.  

 
SCHOOL ISSUES 
 

• Arizona College of Nursing – Prelicensure Bachelor of Science in Nursing Degree Program 
 

Diane Smith Levine. Nick Mansour, Matthew Egan, Amber Kool, Ami Patel, and Jason Duune were 
present on behalf of Arizona College of Nursing. 



 
Chair Bouffard thanked Arizona College of Nursing for submitting additional documentation and 
allowing the Board to review the documents.     

 
Joseph Bierbaum moved to approve Arizona College School of Nursing’s Prelicensure Bachelor of 
Science in Nursing Degree Program. The motion was seconded by Gina Reiners with all in favor with 
the exception of Geraldine Marrocco and Mary Dietmann, who opposed, and Rebecca Martinez who 
abstained.      

 
 

• Stone Academy – Comments from a former faculty member 
 

The Board discussed the issues brought forth by the West Haven day program former faculty member 
at Stone Academy.   

 
Helen Smith explained to the Board that Stone Academy went through a 5-year study in 2021 and it 
was approved.  Helen Smith reviewed the steps taken for the approval.  Mary Dietmann felt that the 
Board should seek a deeper investigation of the allegations.  The Board generally discussed the 
issues with private versus public schools, the costs of education and the NCLEX pass rates.   

 
 
MEMORANDA OF DECISION 
 

Adwoa Darko, LPN Petition No. 2020-351 
 

Geraldine Marrocco made a motion to affirm the Memorandum of Decision for Petition No. 2021-3911 
as presented, seconded by Mary Dietmann.  The motion was unanimously approved.   

 
 
MOTION FOR SUMMARY SUSPENSION 
 

Candace Staines, RN  Petition No. 2022-470  
 

Staff attorney Joelle Newton presented the Board with a Motion for Summary Suspension for 
Candance Staines, RN. The Respondent was not present and not represented. 
Gina Reiners moved to grant the Department’s  Motion for Summary Suspension in that respondent’s 
continued practice as a nurse is a clear an immediate danger to public health, safety, and 
welfare.made a motion to suspend the license of Candace Staines, The motion was seconded by 
Mary Dietmann. The motion was approved unanimously. 

 
 
CONSENT ORDERS 

 
Donna Monticone, R.N.  Petition No. 2020-1112 

 
Staff Attorney Joelle Newton presented a Consent Order in the matter of Donna Monticone, R.N.  
Respondent was present with her counsel, Attorney Cody Guarnieri.  
Lisa Freeman made a motion, seconded by Cynthia Aprin to approve the Consent Order which 
imposes a 6-month suspension, urine samples and therapist reports.  After discussion, the motion 
passed unanimously.    

 
Allison Sewell, R.N.   Petition No.: 2020-53 

 
Staff Attorney Aden Baume, Department of Public Health, presented a Consent Order in the matter of 
Allison Sewell, R.N.  Respondent was not present and not represented.  Geraldine Marrocco made a 

 
1 There was a clerical error in the agenda identifying Adwoa Darko’s Petition No. as 2020-351.  The correct Petition No. is 
2021-391.  



motion to  approve the consent order and seconded by Joseph Bierbaum.  Following discussion, the 
motion to approve failed.  The Board requested that DPH revise the Consent Order to remove the 
tolling language. 

 
 
 
HEARINGS 

 
Susan Fellows Petition No.: 2021-700 

 
Staff Attorney Aden Baume was present for the Department of Public Health.  Respondent was not 
present and was not represented.   
 
Lisa Freeman made a motion, seconded by Joseph Bierbaum to grant the Department of Public 
Health’s oral request to deem allegations admitted.  The motion passed unanimously.  
 
Following the close of the hearing, the Board conducted fact-finding.  Gina Reiners made a motion, 
seconded by Cynthia Aprin that Respondent be found on all charges.  The motion passed 
unanimously. 
 
Gina Reiners made a motion that Respondent be reprimanded, put on probation for three months and 
be required to take an ethics course.  The motion was seconded by Jason Blando, with all in favor 
with the exception of Ms. Marrocco, Rebecca Martinez, and Mary Dietmann, who all opposed.   The 
motion passed     

 
 

REGULATIONS 
 

A motion was unanimously approved to add the topic of Regulations to the agenda, upon motion by 
Mary Dietmann and seconded by Cynthia Aprin.   

 
Chair Bouffard reported that a draft of the revised regulations was sent out to the regulations review 
subcommittee.  The Board will be provided an opportunity to review the proposed revisions to the 
regulations before going through the formal approval process.   

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 
This meeting adjourned at 10:21 a.m. on a motion by Joseph Bierbaum, seconded by Cynthia Aprin. 

 
 
Patricia C. Bouffard, D.N.Sc. 
Chair Board of Examiners for Nursing 



1 
 

 
The following minutes are draft minutes which are subject to revision and which have not yet been adopted by the Board. 

 
The Board of Examiners for Nursing held a meeting on July 20, 2022 via Microsoft TEAMS. 

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT: Patricia C. Bouffard, RN, D.N.Sc. - (RN Member, Chair) 
Gina Reiners, PhD, APRN, PMHNP, PMHCNS - (RN Member) 
Jason Blando - (Public Member) 
Jennifer C. Long, APRN, MSN, NNP-BC - (APRN Member)  
Geraldine Marrocco, Ed.D., APRN, ANP-BC, FAANP - (RN Member) 
Mary E. Dietmann, EdD, APRN, ACNS-BC, CNE - (RN Member) 
Rebecca Martinez, LPN – (LPN Member) 

 
BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT: Cynthia L. Arpin, RN, MSN – (RN Member) 
     Joseph Bierbaum (Public Member) 

Lisa S. Freeman, BA - (Public Member)  
 

 
ALSO PRESENT:   Dana Dalton, RN, Supervising Nurse Consultant, DPH  

Helen Smith, RN, Nurse Consultant, DPH 
Aden Baume, Staff Attorney, DPH 
Joelle Newton, Staff Attorney, DPH 
Linda Fazzina, Staff Attorney, DPH   
Jeff Kardys, Board Liaison, DPH 
Kerry Colson, AAG, Board Counsel 
 

 
The meeting commenced at 8:30 a.m. All participants were present via Microsoft TEAMS. 
 
 
CHAIR UPDATES 

 
Chair Bouffard reported that the regulations are with DPH for revisions.  Dana Dalton will follow up on 
the status of the revisions.    
 

ADDITIONAL AGENDA ITEMS AND REORDERING OF AGENDA 
 
Jeff Kardys advised that there were no changes to the agenda.  Ms. Trombino’s boyfriend, Ricardo, 
called into the meeting and requested a continuance of the hearing on her behalf.   Gina Reiners 
made a motion, seconded by Geraldine Marrocco to continue the hearing of Ms. Trombino.  The 
motion passed unanimously.  A motion to approve the agenda as revised was made by Mary 
Dietmann and seconded by Geraldine Marrocco.  The motion unanimously passed.   

 
OPEN FORUM 
 
 Nothing to report.  
 
NATIONAL COUNCIL STATE BOARDS OF NURSING 

 
Mary Dietmann reported on the National Council Education Committee meeting of July 15, 2022.  
NSCBN is conducting a national study of the pre-licensure of RNs and expects preliminary data to be 
available April 2023.  The NCSBN annual meeting is in August.  Chair Bouffard, Cynthia April and 
Dana Dalton will be attending in person.   

 
 
 



2 
 

 
 
MINUTES 
 
Jennifer Long made a motion to approve the minutes for January 5, 2022, seconded by Mary Dietmann.  The 
motion unanimously passed.   
 
Geraldine Marrocco made a motion to approve the minutes for January 19, 2022, seconded by Gina Reiners.  The 
motion passed unanimously with the exception of Jennifer Long, who abstained.   

 
CONNECTICUT LEAGUE FOR NURSING – Monthly Update 

Marcia Proto provided an update from the Connecticut Center for Nursing Workforce.   Marcia asked 
that future agendas reflect the merged entity name as the CT Center for Nursing Workforce.  There 
are two new co-chairs for the Deans and Directors Council, Linda Wagner, University of Bridgeport 
and Ezekiel Dominque, Norwalk Community College.  The Center for Nursing Workface has received 
funding to create a full-time nurse faculty preparation course.   

 
OLD BUSINESS 

 
Goodwin University – Corrective Action Plans 

 
 Bruce Hoffman, Dr. Vivienne Friday and Dr. Michael Pardales appeared on behalf of Goodwin University.  
 

o Associate Degree Program 
 
Geraldine Marrocco made a motion to vacate the July 6, 2022 Board decision to reject the Goodwin 
University corrective action for the Associate Decree Program to correct any appearance of a conflict of 
interest with a Board member. The motion was seconded by Mary Dietmann.  Gina Reiners recused 
herself.  The motion unanimously passed.  
 
Jennifer Long made a motion to reject the Goodwin University corrective plan of action for the associate 
degree program presented at the July 6, 2022 meeting.  The motion was seconded by Geraldine Marrocco.  
Gina Reiners recused herself.  The motion unanimously passed.   
 
Goodwin University will revise the plan for the September 21, 2022 meeting.   
 

o Accelerated Bachelor of Nursing Program 
 
Mary Dietmann made a motion to vacate the July 6, 2022 Board decision to reject the Goodwin University 
corrective action for the Accelerated Bachelor of Nursing Program to correct any appearance of conflict of 
interest with a Board member.  The motion was seconded by Jennifer Long.  Gina Reiners recused herself.  
The motion unanimously passed. 
 
Mary Dietmann made a motion to reject the Goodwin University corrective plan of action for the accelerated 
bachelor of nursing program.  The motion was seconded by Jennifer Long.  Gina Reiners recused herself.  
The motion unanimously passed. 
 
Goodwin University will revise the plan for the September 21, 2022 meeting.   
 

 
NEW BUSINESS 

 
• Memorandum of Decision Template 

 
Dana Dalton presented on the revised and updated memorandum of decision template.    
 

MEMORANDUM OF DECISION 
 



3 
 

Corey Richmond, RN  Petition No. 2021-48 
Attorney Ellen Costello appeared on behalf of Respondent.  Respondent was not present.   
Gina Reiners made a motion, seconded by Geraldine Marrocco, to affirm the Memorandum of 
Decision in the matter of Corey Richmond which imposes a three-year probation.  The motion passed 
unanimously. 

 
Colleen Gallagher  Petition No. 2021-630 
Respondent was not present.   
 
Gina Reiners made a motion, seconded by Mary Dietmann, to affirm the Memorandum of Decision in 
the matter of Corey Richman which imposes revocation of license.  The motion passed unanimously. 
 

 
MOTION FOR SUMMARY SUSPENSION 

  
 Kimberly Lemire RN  Petition No. 2022-561   Staff Attorney Craig Sullivan 
 

Staff Attorney Craig Sullivan presented the Board with a Motion for Summary Suspension for 
Kimberly Lemire.  Respondent was not present and was not represented.    
 
Jennifer Long moved to grant the Department’s Motion for Summary Suspension in that 
respondent’s continued practice as a nurse is a clear and immediate danger to public health, 
safety, and welfare. The motion was seconded by Gina Reiners and passed unanimously.    
 
A hearing will be scheduled for August 3, 2022.   

 
MOTION TO WITHDRAW STATEMENT OF CHARGES  

 
Stacey Thompson, LPN Petition No. 2021-714   Staff Attorney Aden Baume 
 
Staff Attorney Aden Baume presented the Board with a Motion for to Withdraw Statement of 
Charges for Stacey Thompson.  Respondent was not present and was not represented.    

 
Geraldine Marroco moved to grant the Department’s Motion to Withdraw the Statement of Charges 
against Stacey Thomspon. The motion was seconded by Rebecca Martinez and passed 
unanimously 

 
PREHEARING REVIEW 

 
Mary-Elizabeth Taylor, RN Petition No. 2018-1355   Staff Attorney Joelle Newton 

 
Staff Attorney Joelle Newton presented the Board with a pre-hearing review packet in this matter.     
Respondent was present and represented by Attorney Mary Alice Leonhardt. 
The Board recommended probation for 1 year with conditions.   

 
 
CONSENT ORDERS 

 
Bridget Nicholson RN  Petition No. 2020-248   Staff Attorney Joelle Newton 
 
Staff Attorney Joelle Newton presented a Consent Order in this matter.  Respondent was not present 
and not represented.   

 
Gina Reiners made a motion, seconded by Jennifer Long, to approve the Consent Order which 
imposes a four-year probation with conditions.  The motion passed unanimously. 

 



4 
 

Richard Alan Smith, RN Petition No. 2020-339   Staff Attorney Joelle Newton 
 
Staff Attorney Joelle Newton presented a Consent Order in this matter.  Respondent was not present 
and not represented.   

 
Jennifer Long made a motion, seconded by Geraldine Marrocco, to approve the Consent Order 
which imposes a reprimand.  The motion passed unanimously. 
 

Break from 10:15 a.m. to 10:30 a.m. 
 
HEARINGS 

 
Sarah Croteau, LPN  Petition No. 2021-12221         Staff Attorney Aden Baume 
Staff Attorney Aden Baume was present for the Department of Public Health.  Respondent was 
not present and not represented.     
 
Mary Dietmann made a motion to revise the Statement of Charges to reflect the correct spelling 
of Respondent’s name from Sara to Sarah, seconded by Geraldine Marrocco.  The motion 
passed unanimously.  
 
The Board accepted the Department’s exhibits.  
 
Gina Reiners made a motion, seconded by Geraldine Marrocco to grant the Department of Public 
Health’s oral request to deem allegations admitted.  The motion passed unanimously.  
 
Following the close of the hearing, the Board conducted fact-finding.  Gina Reiners made a motion, 
seconded by Mary Dietmann that Respondent be found on all charges.  The motion passed 
unanimously. 
 
Gina Reiners made a motion, seconded by Geraldine Marrocco that Respondent’s license be 
revoked.  The motion passed unanimously.   
 
Maureen Hurley, RN  Petition No. 2020-3912   Staff Attorney Linda Fazzina 
 
Staff Attorney Linda Fazzina was present for the Department of Public Health.  Respondent was not 
present and not represented.   
 
Gina Reiners made a motion to continue the hearing to get verification that Respondent and 
Respondent’s counsel received the hearing notice.  The motion was seconded by Rebecca Martinez 
and passed unanimously.     

 

ADJOURNMENT 
This meeting adjourned at 2:18 pm on a motion by Lisa Freeman, seconded by Mary Dietmann. 

 
Patricia C. Bouffard, D.N.Sc. 
Chair Board of Examiners for Nursing 

 

 
1 There was a clerical error for the hearing of Sara Croteau.  The petition number on the agenda was Petition No. 2021-1222.  
The correct Petition No is 2021-739.   
2 There was a clerical error for the hearing of Maureen Hurley, RN.  The petition number on the agenda was Petition No. 
2020-391.  The correct Petition No. is 2019-732.   



1 
 

 
The following minutes are draft minutes which are subject to revision and which have not yet been adopted by the Board. 

 
The Board of Examiners for Nursing held a meeting on November 16, 2022 via Microsoft TEAMS. 

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT: Patricia C. Bouffard, RN, D.N.Sc. - (RN Member, Chair) 
Gina Reiners, PhD, APRN, PMHNP, PMHCNS - (RN Member) 
Jason Blando - (Public Member) 
Geraldine Marrocco, Ed.D., APRN, ANP-BC, FAANP - (RN Member) 
Mary E. Dietmann, EdD, APRN, ACNS-BC, CNE - (RN Member) 
Rebecca Martinez, LPN – (LPN Member) 
Cynthia L. Arpin, RN, MSN – (RN Member) 
Lisa S. Freeman, BA - (Public Member) (10:36 a.m.) 
 

 
BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT: Jennifer C. Long, APRN, MSN, NNP-BC - (APRN Member) 

 
 
ALSO PRESENT:   Dana Dalton, RN, Supervising Nurse Consultant, DPH  

Helen Smith, RN, Nurse Consultant, DPH 
Stacy Schulman, Staff Attorney, Board Counsel 
Aden Baume, Staff Attorney, DPH 
Joelle Newton, Staff Attorney, DPH 
Linda Fazzina, Staff Attorney, DPH   
Dianne Bertucio, Board Liaison, DPH 
 

 
The meeting commenced at 8:30 a.m. All participants were present via Microsoft TEAMS. 
 
 
CHAIR UPDATES 

 
Chair Bouffard reported that she presented at student day sponsored by the CT Center for Nursing 
Workforce, Inc.    
 

ADDITIONAL AGENDA ITEMS AND REORDERING OF AGENDA 
 
Gina Reiners made a motion to add the consent order for Kimberly Anglin to the agenda, seconded by 
Cynthia Aprin.  The motion passed unanimously.   
 
Gina Reiners made a motion to add the summary suspension for Margaret Dunnan to the agenda, 
seconded by Cynthia Aprin.  The motion passed unanimously.   
 
Geraldine Marrocco made a motion to approve the revised agenda, seconded by Rebecca Martinez.  
The motion passed unanimously.   

 
OPEN FORUM 
 
 Nothing to report.  
 
NATIONAL COUNCIL STATE BOARDS OF NURSING 

 
Chair Bouffard reported that there was a National Council Education Committee meeting on 
November 14, 2022 regarding ACEN standards.  Chair Bouffard will send out a copy of the slide deck 
from the meeting.  Mary Dietmann advised that the public is relying on the state website for test 
passing rates and it should be updated on a regular basis.   



2 
 

 
 

THE CONNECTICUT CENTER FOR NURSING WORKFORCE, INC.  – Monthly Update 
 
Linda Wagner provided an update for the Deans and Directors Council.  A workshop is being planned 
for December 20, 2022.  The Board discussed issues with nursing shortages.   
 
Marcia Proto provided an update for the CT Center for Nursing Workforce.   

 
MINUTES 
 

Jennifer Long made a motion to approve the minutes for June 1, 2022, seconded by Gina Reiners.  The 
motion unanimously passed, with the exception of Mary Dietmann and Cynthia Aprin who both abstained.     

 
SCOPE OF PRACTICE 
 
 Nothing to report.  
 
SCHOOL ISSUES 
 

Porter and Chester Institute – Rocky Hill Campus Closure  
 

Holly Breault appeared on behalf of Porter & Chester Institute.   
 
Helen Smith reported that the Porter & Chester Institute Rocky Hill campus will be closing.   

 
 

Western Connecticut State University – Letter of Intent 
 
 Jeannette Lupinacci appeared on behalf of Western Connecticut State University.  
 

Western Connecticut State University intends to establish an accelerated Bachelor of Science and Nursing 
Program in the summer of 2024.  Chair Bouffard thanked Jeannette Lupinacci.   

 
Griffin Hospital School of Allied Health Careers, Practical Nursing Program – Department Site Visit 

 
Kayla Bennett and Amanda Sleeper(sp?) appeared on behalf of Griffin Hospital School of Allied Health 
Careers.  

 
Helen Smith reported on the DPH on-site tour of the Griffin Hospital School of Allied Health Careers’ 
campus and a subsequent virtual tour for the practical nurse program.   
 
Mary Dietmann made a motion to deny the appropriateness of the space at Griffin Hospital, seconded by 
Jason Blando.  The motion failed.     
 
Chair Bouffard requested Griffin Hospital School to provide an addendum identifying where the faculty 
offices and parking will be on campus in advance of the December, 2022 meeting.   
.   
Stone Academy – Revised Corrective Action Plans – East Hartford and West Haven Evening Programs 

 
 Dr. Brian Pervis, Gary Evans, Ann Cooper, and Erin Walton appeared on behalf of Stone Academy.  
 

Jennifer Long made a motion to accept the Stone Academy East Hartford Campus Evening Division 
corrective action plan, seconded by Gina Reiners.  The motion passed unanimously with the exception of 
Rebecca Martinez and Jason Blound, who opposed.   
 
Gina Reiners made a motion to accept the Stone Academy West Haven Campus Evening Division 
corrective action plan, seconded by Cynthia Aprin.  The motion passed unanimously.  



3 
 

 
MOTION TO WITHDRAW STATEMENT OF CHARGES  

 
Sheryl Lacoursiere, APRN, RN    Petition Nos. 2021-1072;2021-1199    Staff Attorney Joelle Newton 
 
Staff Attorney Joelle Newton presented the Board with a Motion for to Withdraw Statement of 
Charges for Stacey Thompson.  Attorney Ellen Costello appeared on behalf of the Respondent.  
Respondent was not present.   Gina Reiners recused herself from this matter.  

 
Mary Dietmann made a motion to withdraw the statement of charges for petitions numbered 2021-
1072 and 2021-1199 against Sheryl LaCoursiere.  The motion was seconded by Jennifer Long and 
passed unanimously. 

 
 
MOTION FOR SUMMARY SUSPENSION 
 

  Gina L. Candelori-Bertola, RN  Petition No. 2021-1210   Staff Attorney Craig Sullivan 
 

Staff Attorney Craig Sullivan presented the Board with a Motion for Summary Suspension for 
Gina L. Candelori-Bertola.  Respondent was not present and was not represented.    
 
Jennifer Long moved to grant the Department’s Motion for Summary Suspension in that 
respondent’s continued practice as a nurse is a clear and immediate danger to public health, 
safety, and welfare. The motion was seconded by Gina Reiners and passed unanimously.    
 
The hearing will be scheduled for December 21, 2022. 
 
Margaret Dunnan, RN  Petition No. 2021-1098   Staff Attorney Aden Baume 
 
Staff Attorney Craig Sullivan presented the Board with a Motion for Summary Suspension for 
Margaret Dunnan.  Respondent was not present and was not represented.    
 
Cynthia Aprin moved to grant the Department’s Motion for Summary Suspension in that 
respondent’s continued practice as a nurse is a clear and immediate danger to public health, safety, 
and welfare. The motion was seconded by Jennifer Long and passed unanimously. 
 
The hearing will be scheduled for December 21, 2022.  

 
MEMORANDUM OF DECISION 
 
 Stone Academy West Haven Campus Day Program – Revised Fact Finding 
 

Dr. Brian Pervis, Gary Evans, Attorney Aaron Bayer, and Erin Walton appeared on behalf of Stone 
Academy. 

 
Attorney Schulman reviewed the history of this matter.  The Board has received a Memorandum of 
Decision to vote on, but has been informed that the Stone Academy West Haven Day Program is be 
closing making the Memorandum of Decision moot.  The record needs to be opened to determine if the 
Board’s findings remain.   
 
Attorney Schulman entered the October 19, 2022 letter from Stone Academy signed by Erin Walton into the 
record.   

 
Jennifer Long made a motion to modify the current order since West Haven Day Program is closed there is 
no further action to be taken by the Board, seconded by Mary Dietmann.  The motion passed unanimously.   
 

 



4 
 

CONSENT ORDERS 
 
Kimberly Anglin, RN  Petition No. 2022-12  Staff Attorney Joelle Newton 
Staff Attorney Joelle Newton presented a Consent Order in this matter.  Respondent and her attorney 
were not present.      
 
Jennifer Long made a motion, seconded by Gina Reiners, to approve the Consent Order which 
imposes a reprimand and a four-year probation with conditions.  The motion passed unanimously. 

 
Lisa M. Alexander, RN  Petition No. 2020-697   Staff Attorney Linda Fazzina 
Staff Attorney Linda Fazzina presented a Consent Order in this matter.  Respondent was not present 
and not represented.   

 
Gina Reiners made a motion to approve the Consent Order which imposes a reprimand and a six-
month probation period with conditions, seconded by Mary Dietmann.  The motion passed 
unanimously. 

 
Marcus Anthony Garcia, RN Petition No. 2019-1240   Staff Attorney Joelle Newton 
Staff Attorney Joelle Newton presented a Consent Order in this matter.  Respondent was present.  

 
Jennifer Long made a motion to approve the Consent Order which imposes a three-month 
suspension followed by a four-year probation period, seconded by Lisa Freeman.  The motion 
passed unanimously. 

 
Dawn Hobill, LPN  Petition No. 2022-272   Staff Attorney Joelle Newton 
Staff Attorney Joelle Newton presented a Consent Order in this matter.  Respondent was not present 
and not represented.   

 
Gina Reiners made a motion to approve the Consent Order which imposes a reprimand on the 
license and a six-month probation with conditions, seconded by Mary Dietmann.  The motion passed 
unanimously. 

 
John D. Mosher, RN        Petition No. 2022-888   Staff Attorney Linda Fazzina 
 
Staff Attorney Linda Fazzina presented a Consent Order in this matter.  Respondent was not present 
and not represented.   

 
Jennifer Long made a motion to approve the Consent Order in which the license is surrendered, 
seconded by Geraldine Marrocco.  The motion passed unanimously. 

 
 
PREHEARING REVIEW 

 
Jemma Wettish, Unlicensed RN Petition No. 2022-863   Staff Attorney Craig Sullivan 

 
Staff Attorney Joelle Newton presented the Board with a pre-hearing review packet in this matter.     
Respondent was present, but not represented by counsel.   
 
The Board recommended 3 years of probation for reinstatement and a refresher course.  

 
HEARINGS 

 
Kristin Brice, LPN  Petition No. 2022-913  Staff Attorney Craig Sullivan 
Staff Attorney Aden Baume was present for the Department of Public Health.  Respondent was 
present, but not represented by counsel.     
 



5 
 

The Statement of Charges were read into the record and Respondent admitted or denied each 
charge.   
 
Mary Dietmann made a motion to go into executive session, which was seconded by Lisa 
Freeman to hear closing argument that discussed protected information.  The motion passed  
 
Mary Dietmann made a motion to come out of executive session, which was seconded by Gina 
Reiners.  The motion passed unanimously.   
 
Following the close of the hearing, the Board conducted fact-finding.  Gina Reiners made a motion, 
seconded by Mary Dietmann that Respondent be found on all charges.  The motion passed 
unanimously. 
 
Gina Reiners made a motion to extend probation from March 2023 for another year with conditions 
and a key restriction, seconded by Lisa Freeman.  The motion passed unanimously.   

 
Gina Reiners made a motion to vacate the suspension for Respondent effective November 16, 2022,       
seconded by Lisa Freeman.  The motion passed unanimously.   

 
Tabitha Moche, APRN, RN    Petition Nos. 2022-995; 2022;996       Staff Attorney Joelle Newton 
Staff Attorney Aden Baume was present for the Department of Public Health.  Respondent was 
present and was not represented by counsel.    
 
Mary Dietmann made a motion to continue the hearing after determining that Respondent needs 
to be re-noticed, seconded by Jennifer Long.  The motion passed unanimously.   
 
Jennifer Long made a motion to accept the Amended Statement of Charges dated October 28, 
2022, seconded by Mary Dietmann.   
 
The hearing will remain open.   

 
Stone Academy    East Hartford Campus Day Program 
 
Dr. Brian Pervis, Gary Evans, Attorney Aaron Bayer, Ann Cooper, Dr. Sharon Matkowski and Erin Walton 
appeared on behalf of Stone Academy.  Dr. Pervis, Gary Evans, Ann Cooper, Dr. Sharon Matkowski and 
Erin Walton were sworn-in.   
 
Helen Smith was sworn-in for DPH.   
 
Chair Bouffard explained that the hearing is to determine whether the Board will close the Stone Academy 
East Hartford Campus day program or extend conditional approval.   
 
Attorney Schulman read the exhibits into the record.  Attorney Bayer did not object to any of the exhibits.   
 
Gary Evans adopted his prefiled testimony as his own.   
 
Helen Smith testified that she works in the licensing and investigation section of the Department of Public 
Health.  Ms. Smith performs investigations based on complaints or referrals to DPH.   
 
Attorney Bayer presented his opening statement on behalf of Stone Academy.  Witnesses for Stone 
Academy testified as to changes made with the program and their respective experience.  Stone Academy 
has a new leadership team in place.  Gary Evans testified as to the changes implemented to address the 
low pass rates.   
 
The Board questioned the witnesses regarding the program.  The Board was concerned with the low 
passage rates and attrition rates of students.   
 
Gina Reiners noted that the regulations provide for the suspension of enrollment of students if the Board 



6 
 

removes the program from the list of approved programs.   
 
Mary Dietmann made a motion for the Department of Public Health’s Commissioner to remove Stone 
Academy’s East Hartford Campus day program from the list of approved programs in the State of 
Connecticut, seconded by Rebecca Martinez.   The motion passed unanimously with the exception of Chair 
Bouffard and Gina Reiners, who opposed.     
 
A memorandum of decision will be sent to the DPH Commissioner for final approval.   
 
Jacquelyn O’Connor, LPN  Petition No. 2020-845  Staff Attorney Aden Baume 
 
Staff Attorney Aden Baume was present for the Department of Public Health.  Respondent was 
present and represented by Ellen Costello.     
 
Chair Bouffard explained this is a continuation of the hearing for Jacquelyn O’Connor.   
 
Attorney Schulman entered the Notice of Continuance dated October 20, 2022 into the record.   
 
Cynthia Aprin made a to go into executive session, seconded by Lisa Freeman.  The motion 
passed unanimously.   
 
The hearing was closed, but the record was left open.  It will be continued to either December or 
January.  Chair Bouffard will send out proposed dates to the Board.    
 
Liza Paulsen, RN.     Petition No. 2019-1389  Staff Attorney Aden Baume 

 
Staff Attorney Aden Baume was present for the Department of Public Health.  Attorney Gene Zingaro 
appeared for the Respondent.  
 
Gina Reiners made a motion to continue the hearing of Liza Paulsen, seconded by Rebecca Martinez.  
The motion passed unanimously.   
 
Attorney Zingaro will put the motion for continuance in writing.  The hearing will remain open.  

 

ADJOURNMENT 
This meeting adjourned at 5 p.m. on a motion by Cynthia Aprin, seconded by Rebecca Martinez. 

 
Patricia C. Bouffard, D.N.Sc. 
Chair Board of Examiners for Nursing 





























































































































 STATE OF CONNECTICUT 
BOARD OF EXAMINERS FOR NURSING 

 
 
Danielle Dragon, L.P.N.                              Re:  Reinstatement Request  
License No. 035747 

 

MEMORANDUM OF DECISION  

I 
 

Procedural Background 

 
On October 24, 2016, the Board of Examiners for Nursing (“Board”) issued a 

Memorandum of Decision (“Decision”) in Petition No. 2016-846 revoking Danielle Dragon’s  

(“Petitioner”) licensed practical nurse (“L.P.N.”) license.  Department (“Dept.”) Exhibit (“Ex.”) 

1.  The Decision was based on sufficient evidence that Petitioner violated the probationary terms 

of her April 20, 2016, Consent Order (Dept. Ex. 2) and failed to submit to and/or make 

arrangements for random urine screens for drug and alcohol pursuant to said Consent Order.  The 

Decision was also based on evidence that Petitioner had a significant history of substance abuse 

that affected her practice as a L.P.N.  Dept. Ex. 1.   

On June 18, 2022, Petitioner filed a written request for a hearing before the Board, 

seeking reinstatement of her license.  Bd. Ex. 1.  The Department did not file an objection to 

Petitioner’s request. 

Pursuant to Petitioner’s request, the Board issued a Notice of Hearing (“Notice”) dated 

September 29, 2022.  Bd. Ex. 1.  The hearing was scheduled for December 21, 2022.  Bd. Ex. 1.  

The hearing was held on December 21, 2022.  Petitioner was present at the hearing and 

was self-represented.  Transcript (“Tr.”) p. 3.  Attorney Joelle Newton represented the 

Department.  Tr. pp. 2, 6.    

Following the close of the record, the Board conducted fact finding.   

Each member of the Board involved in this decision attests that she was present at the 

hearing or has reviewed the record, and that this decision is based entirely on the record, the law, 

and the Board’s specialized professional knowledge in evaluating the evidence.  Pet v. 

Department of Health Services, 228 Conn. 651 (1994).   

 



  Page 2 of 10 

II 

Findings of Fact 
 
Based on the testimony given and the exhibits admitted into evidence, the Board makes 

the following Findings of Fact:   

1. Petitioner previously held Connecticut L.P.N. license number 035747.  Dept. Ex. 1; Dept. 
Ex. 2.   
    

2. On October 24, 2016, the Board issued a Memorandum of Decision that revoked 
Petitioner’s L.P.N. license.  Dept. Ex. 1. 

 
3. Petitioner submitted a self-assessment letter, dated June 4, 2022, in which she 

acknowledges her addiction to pain pills.  She admitted that initially she was in denial 
that she had a problem, until her license was revoked.  She described her attempts at 
rehabilitation which, until 2019, were unsuccessful.  As of June 4, 2022, she had 
achieved 32 months of sobriety. Petitioner has a good support group of counselors and 
sponsors assisting her in her progress.  She stated that she is willing to do whatever the 
Board requires her to do in order to get her license reinstated, including taking and 
passing a refresher course and continuing with her education.  Pet. Ex. 1, pp. 1-2.  
 

4. On June 18, 2022, Petitioner filed a written request for a hearing before the Board, 
seeking reinstatement of her license.  Bd. Ex. 1, pp. 1-3. 

 
5. On June 18, 2022, Petitioner filed documentation in support of her license reinstatement 

request.  Bd. Ex. 2, pp. 1-108 (under seal).     
 
6. On June 18, 2022, Petitioner filed five reference letters confirming her successful 

treatment and negative drug screenings.  Bd. Ex. 2, pp. 102-106 (under seal).   
 
7. On September 2, 2022, Petitioner filed progress notes from a medical practitioner, dated 

August 31, 2022, documenting evaluation of her progress.  The progress notes also 
included a negative drug screening report dated August 31, 2022.  Bd. Ex. 2, pp. 107-108 
(under seal).   

 
8. At the December 21, 2022, hearing the Department did not file an objection to 

Petitioner’s request.  Tr. p. 6.  The Department stated that it supported Petitioner’s 
request for reinstatement of her license.  Id.  

 
9. In December 2022, Petitioner filed a letter with the Department that included updates 

regarding her ongoing recovery progress.  The letter stated that on October 16, 2022, she 
celebrated three years of sobriety.  The letter also stated that she continues to attend 
meetings on a regular basis and that she was completing a Recovery Support Specialist 
course for her benefit as well as for others with whom she hopes to share her experiences.  
Pet. Ex. 2.    

 



  Page 3 of 10 

 
IV 

 
Discussion and Conclusions of Law 

  
Connecticut General Statutes (“Conn. Gen. Stat.”) § 19a-17(e) provides, in pertinent part, 

that the Board “may reinstate a license that has been suspended or revoked if, after a hearing, 

such board . . . is satisfied that the practitioner . . . is able to practice with reasonable skill and 

safety to patients, customers or the public in general.  As a condition of reinstatement, the board  

. . . may impose disciplinary or corrective measures authorized under this section.”  

Petitioner has the burden of satisfying the Board that she is able to practice nursing with 

reasonable skill and safety to patients, customers or the public in general.  Jones v. Connecticut 

Medical Examining Board, 309 Conn. 727, 739-740 (2013).  The Board finds that Petitioner has 

presented sufficient evidence to satisfy her burden.  Findings of Fact (“FF”) 3-9. 

Prior to the hearing, Petitioner was informed that she would be required to provide 

evidence at the hearing that documented the “outcomes of [her] efforts toward recovery” over an 

extended period of time.  Bd. Ex. 1.  Petitioner was also advised that such evidence should 

include the following: 

1. Documentary or testimonial evidence from a licensed therapist verifying a lengthy 

period of drug/alcohol-free status as evidenced by reports of therapy, improved 

emotional health, and an ability to administer safe nursing care, including the 

administration of controlled substances.  

2. Personal references stipulating to  Petitioner’s drug/alcohol-free status, improved 

emotional health and work habits, as well as any other areas of 

improvement/recovery.   

3. Documentary or testimonial evidence from Petitioner’s current and past employers, 

following the revocation of her license, documenting her ability to carry out assigned 

duties responsibly and accurately and her potential for functioning safely and 

effectively as a nurse.  

4. Copies of random, legally defensible screens for drugs and alcohol conducted by 

her therapist and/or physician that evidence her drug/alcohol-free status.   



  Page 4 of 10 

5. Documentation of Petitioner’s participation in support groups and support of a 

sponsor, as well as the outcome of her participation in such support groups.  

6. Documentation from Petitioner’s therapist and/or physician that includes a list of 

current medications prescribed by her health care providers, including a need for 

such medications and an assessment of a continued need for such medications.   

Id. 

The record establishes that Petitioner submitted a self-assessment letter, dated June 4, 

2022, in which she acknowledges her addiction to pain pills.  She admitted that initially she was 

in denial that she had a problem, until her license was revoked.  She described her attempts at 

rehabilitation which, until 2019, were unsuccessful.  As of June 4, 2022, she had achieved 32 

months of sobriety.  Petitioner has a good support group of counselors and sponsors assisting her 

in her progress.  She stated that she is willing to do whatever the Board requires her to do in 

order to get her license reinstated, including taking and passing a refresher course and continuing 

with her education.  FF 3.  

On June 18, 2022, Petitioner filed a written request for a hearing before the Board, 

seeking reinstatement of her license.  Petitioner filed documentation in support of her license 

reinstatement request.  FF 4-5.      

On June 18, 2022, Petitioner filed five reference letters confirming her successful 

treatment and negative drug screenings.  FF 6.    

On September 2, 2022, Petitioner filed progress notes, dated August 31, 2022, from a 

medical practitioner who has been treating her and evaluating her progress.  The progress notes 

also included a negative drug screening report dated August 31, 2022.  FF 7.  There are also 

negative drug screening reports in the record dated October 25, 2022, and November 26, 2022.  

Pet. Ex. 3 (under seal).   

On November 25, 2022, Petitioner filed a letter from her current employer regarding her 

outstanding job performance as an employee in a home improvement business.  The letter 

specifically mentions her willingness to work 12 hour shifts to get the work done without fail.  

Her employer’s letter also comments on Petitioner’s sobriety through her involvement with the 

recovery home the employer also manages. The letter confirms that Petitioner has never declined 

to submit to a drug screening test and that all of her test results have been negative.  Pet. Ex. 2.   



  Page 5 of 10 

At the December 21, 2022, hearing, the Department did not file an objection to 

Petitioner’s request.  Tr. p. 6.  The Department stated that it supported Petitioner’s request for 

reinstatement of her license.  FF 8.   

In December 2022, Petitioner filed a letter to update the Department regarding her 

ongoing progress in recovery.  The letter stated that on October 16, 2022, she celebrated three 

years of sobriety.  The letter also stated that she continues to attend meetings on a regular basis 

and that she was completing a Recovery Support Specialist course for her benefit as well as for 

others with whom she hopes to share her experiences.  FF 9.    

At the hearing, Petitioner testified that she was ready to get her license back.  She 

testified that she is engaged and invested in her recovery and mental health and that in October 

2022 she celebrated three years of sobriety.  She also testified that during those three years she 

has put in the work to learn about her mental health and addiction, stating that she had previously 

been “super naïve” about these issues.  Tr. p. 6.   

As noted in the Findings of Fact and foregoing discussion, the Board finds that Petitioner 

has presented relevant and credible evidence and has sustained her burden of proof.  She has 

satisfied the Board that she is able to return to the practice of nursing with reasonable skill and 

safety under the terms of the Order described below.  Pursuant to Conn. Gen. Stat. § 19a-17(e), 

as a condition of reinstatement, the Board may impose disciplinary or corrective measures.              

 

Order 

 
Pursuant to Conn. Gen. Stat. §§ 19a-17 and 20-99, the Board hereby orders the following: 

1. Danielle Dragon’s licensed practical nurse license number, 035747, is hereby reinstated 

and immediately restricted in that she is prohibited from practicing as a L.P.N. and may 

only use her L.P.N. license for the sole purpose of participating in a refresher program as 

set forth in paragraph 2 of this Order.   

2. Petitioner shall successfully complete a Department-approved L.P.N. refresher course 

that includes a clinical component and shall successfully take the L.P.N. licensing 

examination offered by the National Council of State Boards of Nursing Licensing 

Examination (“NCLEX”). 



  Page 6 of 10 

A. Certification of successful completion of the L.P.N. refresher program shall be 

submitted to the Board directly from the educational institution where said 

program was taken within thirty (30) days of the program's completion. 

B. Petitioner shall submit an application to the Department’s licensing authority.  

Petitioner shall be administered the L.P.N. licensing examination.  Petitioner 

shall incur all expenses associated with applying for and taking the L.P.N. 

licensing examination.   

C. Petitioner shall attain a passing score on the L.P.N. licensing examination. 

D. Until such time as Petitioner successfully completes the L.P.N. refresher 

program and attains a passing score on the L.P.N. licensing examination, 

Petitioner is prohibited from practicing as a L.P.N. and Petitioner’s L.P.N. 

license shall be restricted and used for the sole purpose of participating in the 

L.P.N. refresher program. 

3. Once Petitioner receives notification from the Department that she has satisfied the terms 

set forth in paragraph 2, Petitioner’s L.P.N. license number 035747, shall be placed on 

probation for a period of two years under the following terms and conditions:  

A. Petitioner shall not be employed as a L.P.N. for a personnel provider service, 

assisted living services agency, homemaker-home health aide agency, or home 

health care agency, and shall not be self-employed as a L.P.N. for the period of 

probation. 

 B. During the first six months of working as a L.P.N. during the probationary 

period, Petitioner shall not administer, count, or have access to controlled 

substances, or have responsibility for such activities in the course of nursing 

duties.   

C. If Petitioner is employed as a L.P.N. during the probationary period, she shall 

provide a copy of this Memorandum of Decision to any and all employers.  The 

Board shall be notified in writing by any employer(s), within thirty (30) days of 

the commencement of employment as to receipt of a copy of this Memorandum 

of Decision. 

D. If employed as a L.P.N., Petitioner shall cause employer reports to be submitted 

to the Board by her immediate supervisor during the entire probationary period.  



  Page 7 of 10 

Employer reports shall be submitted commencing with the report due on the first 

business day of the month following employment as a nurse.  Employer reports 

shall be submitted quarterly during the entire probationary period.  

E. The employer reports cited in paragraph 3.D. above shall include documentation 

of Petitioner’s ability to practice nursing safely and competently.  Employer 

reports shall be submitted directly to the Board at the address cited in Paragraph 

3.P. below.  

F. Should Petitioner’s employment as a L.P.N. be involuntarily terminated or 

suspended, Petitioner and her employer shall notify the Board within seventy-

two (72) hours of such termination or suspension.  

G. If Petitioner pursues further training in any subject area that is regulated by the 

Department, Petitioner shall provide a copy of this Memorandum of Decision to 

the educational institution or, if not the institution, to Petitioner’s instructor.  

Such institution or instructor shall notify the Department in writing of receipt of 

a copy of this Memorandum of Decision within fifteen (15) days of receipt.  

Said notification shall be submitted directly to the Department at the address 

cited in paragraph 3.P. below.  

 H. At her expense, Petitioner shall continue to engage in group or individual 

therapy and counseling with a licensed or certified therapist approved by the 

Department for the entire probationary period.  She shall attend AA, NA, and/or 

Nurses to Nurses support group meetings at least eight to ten times a month 

during the entire probationary period.  

I. Petitioner shall provide a copy of this Decision to her therapist.  The Department 

shall be notified in writing by her therapist within 30 days of the effective date 

of this Decision as to receipt of a copy of this Decision.  

J. Petitioner shall request her therapist to submit evaluation reports directly to the 

Department during the entire probationary period.  Therapist reports shall be 

submitted quarterly during the entire probationary period.  

K. The therapist reports cited in Paragraph 3.J. above shall include documentation 

of dates of treatment, an evaluation of Petitioner’s progress, including alcohol 

and drug-free status, and her ability to practice nursing safely and competently.  



  Page 8 of 10 

Therapist reports shall be submitted directly to the Department at the address 

cited in Paragraph 3.P. below.   

L. Petitioner shall submit to observed random urine screens as follows:  

  (1) At her expense, Petitioner shall submit to observed random chain of 

custody urine screens for alcohol and drugs for the entire probationary 

period at a testing facility approved by the Board, after consultation with 

the Department, as ordered by her therapist, and/or personal physician, 

and/or employer.  Alcohol/drug screening may also be required at the 

request of the Board to ensure compliance with this Order.  Random 

alcohol/drug screens shall be legally defensible in that specimen donor and 

chain of custody can be identified throughout the screening process.   

(2) Petitioner shall be responsible for notifying the laboratory, her therapist, 

the Board, the Department, and her prescribing practitioner of any drug(s) 

she is taking.  For any prescription of a controlled substance(s) for more 

than two consecutive weeks, Petitioner shall request the provider 

prescribing the controlled substance(s) to submit quarterly reports to the 

Department until such time as the controlled substance(s) is no longer 

prescribed.  The reports shall include the following:  

 
a. A list of controlled substances prescribed by this provider;  
b. A list of controlled substance(s) prescribed by other providers;  
c. An evaluation of Petitioner’s need for the controlled substances; 

and  
d. An assessment of Petitioner’s continued need for the controlled 

substance(s).  
 

(3) There must be at least one such observed random alcohol/drug screen 

quarterly for the entire probationary period.  

(4) Random alcohol/drug screens shall be negative for the presence of alcohol 

and drugs.  All positive drug screen results shall be confirmed by the Gas 

Chromatograph Mass Spectrometer (GC/MS) testing method.  All positive 

alcohol screen results shall be confirmed by the urine Ethyl Glucuronide 

(EtG) testing method.  Chain of custody documentation must accompany 



  Page 9 of 10 

all laboratory reports and/or the laboratory reports must indicate that chain 

of custody procedures have been followed.   

(5) Random alcohol/drug screens must include testing for the following 

substances: 

   Amphetamines   Methadone 
   Barbiturates    Tramadol   

    Benzodiazepines   Opiates (Metabolites) 
    Cannabinoids (THC Metabolites) Phencyclidine (PCP) 
   Cocaine    Propoxyphene 
   Meperidine (Demerol)  Ethanol (alcohol) 
 
 

 (6) Laboratory reports of random alcohol and drug screens shall be submitted to 

the Department, at the address cited in Paragraph 3.P. below, by Petitioner’s 

therapist, personal physician, or the testing laboratory.  

M. Petitioner shall not obtain for personal use and/or use alcohol or any drug that 

has not been prescribed for her for a legitimate purpose by a licensed health care 

practitioner authorized to prescribe medications.  Petitioner shall not abuse 

and/or excessively use any drugs that are prescribed for a legitimate medical 

purpose.  

N. Petitioner is hereby advised that the ingestion of poppy seeds may produce a 

positive drug screen result indicating the presence of opiates/morphine and that 

the ingestion of mouthwash may produce a positive result indicating the 

presence of alcohol.  For that reason, any food substance containing poppy seeds 

and mouthwash should be avoided during the probationary period.  In the event 

that a drug/alcohol screen is positive for opiates/morphine and/or alcohol, the 

ingestion of poppy seeds and/or mouthwash shall not constitute a defense to 

such positive screen. 

O. The Department must be informed in writing prior to any change of address.  

 

 

 

 



  Page 10 of 10 

P. All communications, payments if required, correspondence, and reports are to be 

addressed to:    

Practitioner Monitoring and Compliance Unit 
Department of Public Health 

Healthcare Quality and Safety Branch 
410 Capitol Avenue, MS #12HSR 

P. O. Box 340308 
Hartford CT 06134-0308 

 
4. Any deviation from the terms of probation, without prior written approval by the Board 

shall constitute a violation of probation which will be cause for an immediate hearing on 

charges of violating this Order.  Any finding that Petitioner has violated this Order will 

subject Petitioner to sanctions under Conn. Gen. Stat. §§ 19a-17(a) and (c), including but 

not limited to, the revocation of her license.  Any extension of time or grace period for 

reporting granted by the Board shall not be a waiver or preclude the Board’s right to take 

subsequent action.  The Board shall not be required to grant future extensions of time or 

grace periods.  Notice of revocation or other disciplinary action shall be sent to 

Petitioner’s address of record which is deemed to be the most current address reported to 

the Department’s Practitioner Licensing and Investigations Section of the Healthcare 

Quality and Safety Branch.  

 

5. This Order becomes effective on the date of signature.  

 

The Board hereby informs Petitioner, Danielle Dragon, and the Department of this decision. 

 

Dated at Waterbury, Connecticut this    day of April 2023. 

 
BOARD OF EXAMINERS FOR NURSING 

          
      by        

       Patricia Bouffard, D.N.Sc., Chairperson  
 



STATE OF CONNECTICUT 
 

BOARD OF EXAMINERS FOR NURSING 
 

 
Rachel Pisani, R.N., A.P.R.N.                                                          Petition Nos.: 2021-1209               
R.N. license No. 098569                                                                                       2021-1223             
A.P.R.N. license No. 006018       
 

 
MEMORANDUM OF DECISION 

 
I 

 
Procedural Background 

 
 On May 13, 2022, the Department of Public Health (“Department”) filed the Statement of 

Charges with the State of Connecticut Board of Examiners for Nursing (“Board”).  Board 

(“Bd.”) Exhibit (“Ex.”) Bd. Ex. 1.  The Charges allege violations of Chapter 378 of the 

Connecticut General Statutes (“Conn. Gen. Stat.”) by Respondent, which would subject her 

Registered Nurse (“R.N.”) license number 098569 and her Advanced Practice Registered Nurse 

(“A.P.R.N.”) license number 006018  to disciplinary action pursuant to Conn. Gen. Stat.  §§ 19a-

17, 20-99 (b)(4) and 20-99(b)(5).  Id. 

On May 18, 2022, the Department filed a Motion for Summary Suspension (“Motion”) 

with the Board. Bd. Ex. 2.  Based on the allegations in the Statement of Charges and the 

affidavits and reports attached to the Motion, the Board found that Respondent’s continued 

nursing practice presented a clear and immediate danger to public health and safety and ordered, 

on the same date, pursuant Conn. Gen. Stat. §§ 4-182 (c ) and 19a-17(c ) that Rachel Pisani’s 

(“Respondent”) R.N. license and A.P.R.N. license be summarily suspended pending a final 

determination by the Board of the allegations contained in the Statement of Charges (“Summary 

Suspension Order”). Id. 

 On May 18, 2022, the Charges, Summary Suspension Order and Notice of Hearing 

(“Notice”) were sent to Respondent by first class mail and email. Bd. Ex. 3.  The documents 

were sent to Respondent’s  email address of record on file with the Department at rachelmpisani 

@ gmail.com.  Id.  The Charges, Summary Suspension Order and Notice were also sent to her 



Page 2 of 5 
 

attorney at the time:  John O’Brien at 411 Center Street, Manchester, CT 06040.1  Id.  

The hearing was scheduled to convene on June 1, 2022.  Id. 

 On May 31, 2022, Respondent requested by email a continuance of the hearing.  Bd. Ex. 

4.  With no objections from the Department, the Board granted Respondent’s request and the 

hearing was continued to August 3, 2022.  Bd. Ex. 5.  

 On June 1, 2022, the Department notified Respondent by email that the hearing was 

continued to August 3, 2022.  Bd. Ex. 6; Tr. p. 5.  Respondent acknowledged receipt of such 

email.  Id.  

 On August 2, 2022, the Board Liaison emailed to Respondent the email link to the video 

conference.  Bd. Ex. 7; Tr. p. 8.   

On August 3, 2022, the hearing was held via video conference.  Tr. 8/3/22. Respondent 

did not appear at the hearing and was not represented by legal counsel.  Tr. p. 3.  Attorney Joelle 

Newton represented the Department.  Id.   

At the hearing, Attorney Newton orally moved on the record to deem the allegations 

admitted insofar as Respondent had failed to file an Answer to the Charges. Tr. p. 10.  The Board 

granted the Department’s Motion to Deem Allegations Admitted. Tr. pp. 10-11.  No witnesses 

were called to testify at the hearing. Tr. p. 11. 

Following the close of the record on August 3, 2022, the Board conducted fact finding. 

Each member of the Board involved in this decision attests that he or she was present at 

the hearing or has reviewed the record, and that this decision is based entirely on the record, the 

law, and the Board’s specialized professional knowledge in evaluating the evidence.  Pet v. 

Department of Health Services, 228 Conn. 651 (1994).  

 
II 

Allegations 

 
1. In paragraph 1 of the Charges, the Department alleges that Rachel Pisani of Meriden, 

Connecticut is, and at all times referenced in these Charges, the holder of Connecticut 
registered nurse license number 098569 and Connecticut advanced practice registered 

 
1 On May 25, 2022, Attorney Newton contacted Attorney O’Brien by email to confirm his representation of 
Respondent.  On the same date, Attorney O’Brien responded by email that his legal representation of Respondent 
had not been formalized, so he would not be proceeding any further in this matter.  On the same date, Attorney 
Newton acknowledged receipt of Attorney O’Brien’s email and confirmed that Respondent was self-represented.   
 



Page 3 of 5 
 

nurse license number 006018. 
 

2. In paragraph 2 of the Charges, the Department alleges that on or about November 11, 
2021, Respondent abused and used to excess cocaine and/or amphetamine 
(“substance abuse”). 

 
3. In paragraph 3 of the Charges, the Department alleges that from approximately 

November 11, 2021, to the present, Respondent has or had one or more emotional 
disorders and/or mental illnesses (“illnesses”). 
 

4. In paragraph 4 of the Charges, the Department alleges that Respondent’s illnesses and 
/or substance abuse does, and/or may, affect her practice of nursing. 
 

5. In paragraph 5 of the Charges, the Department alleges that the above-described 
conduct constitutes grounds for disciplinary action pursuant to Conn. Gen. Stat. § 20-
99(b), including, but not necessarily limited to:  
 

a. §20-99(b)(4), and/or 
b. §20-99(b)(5). 
 

III 
 

Findings of Fact 

 
1. On May 18,  2022, the Charges, Summary Suspension Order and Notice of Hearing were 

sent to Respondent by first class mail and email. Bd. Ex. 3. The documents were sent to 
Respondent’s email address of record on file with the Department at 
rachelmpisani@gmail.com.  Id. . 

 
2. The Charges, Summary Suspension Order and Notice were also sent to her attorney at the 

time:  John O’Brien at 411 Center Street, Manchester, CT 06040.2  Id. 
 

3. The hearing was scheduled to convene on June 1, 2022.  Id. 

4. On May 31, 2022, Respondent requested by email a continuance of the hearing. Bd. Ex. 
4.  With no objections from the Department, the Board granted Respondent’s request and 
the hearing was continued to August 3, 2022.  Bd. Ex. 5.  

 
5. On June 1, 2022, the Department notified Respondent by email that the hearing was 

continued to August 3, 2022.  Bd. Ex. 6; Tr. p. 5.  Respondent acknowledged receipt of 
such email.  Id.  

 
 

2 On May 25, 2022, Attorney Newton contacted Attorney O’Brien by email to confirm his representation of 
Respondent.  On the same date, Attorney O’Brien responded by email that his legal representation of Respondent 
had not been formalized, so he would not be proceeding any further in this matter.  On the same date, Attorney 
Newton acknowledged receipt of Attorney O’Brien’s email and confirmed that Respondent was self-represented.   
 

mailto:rachelmpisani@gmail.com


Page 4 of 5 
 

6. On August 2, 2022, the Board Liaison emailed to Respondent the email link to the video 
conference.  Bd. Ex. 7; Tr. p. 8.   

 
7. The Department provided Respondent with reasonable and adequate written notice of the 

hearing and the allegations contained in the Charges.  Bd. Ex. 3, 5, 6; Tr. pp. 7-8. 
 

8. On August 3, 2022, neither Respondent nor an attorney representing Respondent 
appeared at the hearing. Tr. p. 3. Respondent did not request a second continuance of the 
hearing. Id.                     

 
9. The factual allegations contained in paragraphs 1 through 4 of the Charges are deemed 

admitted and true.  Tr. pp. 10-11. 
 
10. The Department proved the following facts by a preponderance of the evidence:  

a. Rachel Pisani of Meriden, Connecticut is, and at all times referenced in these 
Charges, the holder of Connecticut registered nurse license number 098569 and 
Connecticut advanced practice registered nurse license number 006018. 
b. On or about November 11, 2021, Respondent abused and used to excess cocaine 
and/or amphetamine (“substance abuse”). 
c. From approximately November 11, 2021, to the present, Respondent has or had 
one or more emotional disorders and/or mental illnesses (“illnesses”). 
d. Respondent’s illnesses and /or substance abuse does, and/or may, affect her 
practice of nursing. 
e. the Respondent’s conduct constitutes grounds for disciplinary action pursuant to 
Conn. Gen. Stat. § 20-99(b), including, but not necessarily limited to: §20-99(b)(4), 
and/or §20-99(b)(5). 
 

 
 

 IV 
 

Discussion and Conclusions of Law 

 The Department bears the burden of proof by a preponderance of the evidence in this 

matter.  Jones v. Connecticut Medical Examining Board, 309 Conn. 727, 739-740 (2013).  The 

Department sustained its burden of proof regarding the allegations contained in the Charges. 

Conn. Gen. Stat. § 20-99 provides, in pertinent part, that:  

(a) The Board . . . .   shall have jurisdiction to hear all charges of conduct which fails to 
conform to the accepted standards of the nursing profession brought against persons 
licensed to practice nursing.  After holding a hearing . . . .  said board, if it finds such 
person to be guilty, may revoke or suspend his or her license or take any of the 
actions set forth in section 19a-17  .  .  .  . 



Page 5 of 5 
 

(b) Conduct which fails to conform to the accepted standards of the nursing profession 
includes, but is not limited to, the following: . . . . (4) emotional disorder or mental 
illness; (5) abuse or excessive use of drugs, including alcohol, narcotics or chemicals.   

  

Since Respondent did not file an Answer, the allegations are deemed admitted.  See, 

Conn. Agencies Regs. § 19a-9-20.  In addition, based on the sufficient and credible evidence 

presented, the Department established by a preponderance of the evidence that Respondent 

abused or used cocaine and/or amphetamine to excess; and, from approximately November 11, 

2022, to the present, Respondent has or had one or more emotional illnesses.  Department 

(“Dept.”) Ex. 1, pp. 1-4 (under seal); Dept. Ex. 2, pp. 6-8; Dept. Ex. 3, pp. 14-15 (under seal); 

and, Dept. Ex. 4, pp. 16-18.  

Thus, the Board concludes, based on the sufficient and credible evidence presented, that 

Respondent’s conduct, as alleged in paragraphs 1 through 4 of the Charges, is deemed to be 

admitted and true, that Respondent is currently unable to practice with reasonable skill and 

safety; and that such findings constitute grounds for disciplinary action pursuant to Conn. Gen. 

Stat. §§ 20-99(b)(4), 20-99(b)(5), and § 19a-17. 

 

Order 

 Based on the record in this case, the above findings of fact and conclusions of law, and 

pursuant to the statutory authority under Conn. Gen. Stat. §§ 19a-17(a), (2) and (5) and 20-

99(b)(4) and 20-99(b)(5), the Board finds that in Petition No. 2021-1209 and Petition No. 2021-

1223, the Department has proved by a preponderance of the evidence that Respondent’s conduct 

warrants the disciplinary action imposed by this Order.  Thus, the Board hereby orders that 

Rachel Pisani’s A.P.R.N. license number 006018 in the State of Connecticut is REVOKED and 

R.N. license number 098569 in the State of Connecticut is REVOKED.                                                                                

        This Memorandum of Decision becomes effective on the date signed by the Board.   

The Board hereby informs Respondent, Rachel Pisani, and the Department of this decision.   

 
Dated at Waterbury, Connecticut this_____ day of January 2023.    

     BOARD OF EXAMINERS FOR NURSING 
      

By        
      Patricia C. Bouffard, D.N.Sc., Chair 



 STATE OF CONNECTICUT 
BOARD OF EXAMINERS FOR NURSING 

 
 
Lisa Simon, L.P.N.                                                       Petition No. 2021-578 
License No. 025783 

 
MEMORANDUM OF DECISION  

I 
 

Procedural Background 

On May 25, 2022, the Department of Public Health ("Department") filed a Statement of 

Charges (“Charges”) with the Board of Examiners for Nursing (“Board”).  Board (“Bd.”) Exhibit 

(“Ex.”) 1.  The Charges allege violations of Chapter 378 of the Connecticut General Statutes 

(“Conn. Gen. Stat.”) by Lisa Simon (“Respondent”), which would subject Respondent’s licensed 

practical nurse (“L.P.N.”) license no. 025783 to disciplinary action pursuant to Conn. Gen. Stat. 

§§ 19a-12e(e), 19a-17(f) and §§ 20-99(b)(2), 20-99(b)(2) and/or 20-99(b)(6).  Id. 

On May 25, 2022, the Department filed a Motion for Summary Suspension Order 

(“Motion”) regarding Respondent’s practice and the active status of her L.P.N. license.                        

Bd. Ex. 2.  Based on the allegations in the Charges and the affidavits and reports accompanying 

the Motion, the Board found on June 1, 2022, that Respondent’s continued nursing practice 

presented a clear and immediate danger to public health and safety and; on the same date, 

ordered pursuant to Conn. Gen. Stat. § 4-182(c) and § 19a-17(c), that Respondent’s license be 

summarily suspended pending a final determination by the Board of the allegations contained in 

the Charges (“Summary Suspension Order”).  Bd. Ex. 3. 

On June 2, 2022, the Charges, Notice of Hearing (“Notice”) and Summary Suspension 

Order were mailed to Respondent, by first-class mail to her address of record on file with the 

Department: 62 Webb Terrace, Ansonia, CT 06401.  Bd. Ex. 4.  Also on August 6, 2022, the 

Charges, Notice and Summary Suspension Order were transmitted to Respondent via her email 

address of record on file with the Department at sisalimon0924@gmail.com.  Id.  The hearing 

was scheduled for July 6, 2022.  Id.  

On June 24, 2022, Respondent emailed a request for a continuance (Bd. Ex. 5) and 

without the Department’s objection, the continuance was granted on June 27, 2022.  The hearing 

was continued until August 3, 2022.  Bd Ex. 6.   



  Page 2 of 12 

On June 15, 2022, Respondent filed an Answer to the Charges.  Bd. Ex. 7 

On July 27, 2022, Respondent requested a second continuance to give her sufficient time 

to retain counsel.  Without objection from the Department, Respondent’s request was granted on 

August 2, 2022.  The August 3, 2022, hearing was continued until October 19, 2022.  Bd. Ex. 8.    

The hearing was held on October 19, 2022.  Respondent was  present at the hearing but  

was not represented by legal counsel.  Transcript (“Tr.”) p. 3.  Attorney Linda Fazzina 

represented the Department.  Id.       

Following the close of the record, the Board conducted fact finding. 

Each member of the Board involved in this decision attests that he or she was present at 

the hearing or has reviewed the record, and that this decision is based entirely on the record, the 

law, and the Board’s specialized professional knowledge in evaluating the evidence.  Pet v. 

Department of Health Services, 228 Conn. 651 (1994).  

II 

Allegations 

 
1. In paragraph 1 of the Charges, the Department alleges that Respondent of Ansonia, CT, 

is, and has been at all times, as referenced in the Charges, the holder of Connecticut             
L.P.N. license number 025783.  Bd. Ex. 1; Bd. Ex. 7; Department (“Dept.”) Ex. 1, p. 1.  

 
2. In paragraph 2 of the Charges, the Department alleges that on or about September 16, 

2021, the Vermont Board of Nursing issued a Summary Suspension Order (“Vermont 
Order”) suspending Respondent’s ability to practice nursing in Vermont based, in  
part upon findings that an emergency action was necessary to prevent patient harm and to 
protect the public in connection with the misuse of a credit card belonging to a resident of 
Linden Health Center at Wake Robin Care home in Shelburne, CT (“Wake Robin”). 

 
3. In paragraph 3 of the Charges, the Department alleges that in or about April 2021, 

Respondent accepted an assignment as a travel nurse at Wake Robin.  At that time, 
Respondent did not hold a Vermont nursing license, but she was authorized to practice in 
Vermont pursuant to Act 6 of the 2021 Session Laws of the State of Vermont by virtue of 
having a Connecticut nursing license in good standing.  

 
4. In paragraph 4 of the Charges, the Department alleges that in or about April and/or May 

2021, Respondent violated the standard of care of the nursing profession and/or engaged 
in unprofessional conduct in that she misappropriated and/or fraudulently used a credit 
card belonging to a Wake Robin resident.   

 



  Page 3 of 12 

5. In paragraph 5 of the Charges, the Department alleges that Respondent failed to report to 
the Department, as required by Conn. Gen. Stat. § 19a-12e(e), the disciplinary action 
taken by the Vermont Board of Nursing under the Vermont Order.   

 
6. In paragraph 6 of the Charges, the Department alleges that the above cited facts constitute 

grounds for disciplinary action pursuant to Conn. Gen. Stat. §§ 19a-17(f), 19a-12e(e), 
and/or 20-99, including, but not limited to §§ 20-99(b)(2) and/or 20-99(b)(6). 

  
III 

 
Findings of Fact 

 
1. Respondent of Ansonia, CT, is, and has been at all times, as referenced in the Charges, 

the holder of Connecticut L.P.N. license number 025783.  Bd. Ex. 1; Bd. Ex. 7; 
Department (“Dept.”) Ex. 1, p. 1.  

 
2. Respondent was hired as a travel nurse for a 12-week contract that ran from March 10, 

2021, through June 12, 2021.  At that time, Respondent did not hold a Vermont nursing 
license, but she was authorized to practice in Vermont pursuant to Act 6 of the 2021 
Session Laws of the State of Vermont by virtue of having a Connecticut nursing license 
in good standing.  Bd. Ex. 7;Department (“Dept.”) Ex. 1, p. 2. 

 
3. Respondent was assigned primarily to work in the Memory Care unit at Wake Robin.  

Dept. Ex. 1, p. 2. 
 
4. One of the residents in Respondent’s care was a 91-year-old dementia patient, who had 

numerous chronic conditions.  The resident had lived at Wake Robin for 18 years, seven 
of those years in the Memory Care Unit due to his slow, but continuous cognitive decline.  
Dept. Ex. 1, pp. 20-24, 27-30.  The Wake Robin staff was not aware that he had a credit 
card in his possession.  The resident had no access to a computer or the internet and had 
not used his credit card for any purchases since March 2020.  Dept. Ex. 1, pp. 1-3, 7-8, 
17, 30-31, 42-44, 54-55. 

 
5. Respondent used the resident’s credit card for the first time on April 11, 2021.  Between 

April 11, 2021, and April 28, 2021, Respondent made fraudulent charges to this card 
more than 14 times.  The amount charged was at least $3,505.  Dept. Ex. 1, pp. 41, 43-44, 
46-50, 55. 

 
6. On May 3, 2021, the resident’s daughter froze his bank account.  Dept. Ex. 1, pp. 3, 44, 

55. 
 
7. On May 5 and May 6, 2021, Respondent’s attempts to charge $637.37 were declined 

after the resident’s daughter had contacted his bank and had frozen the account.                   
Dept. Ex. 1, pp. 3, 44, 55.   

 
 



  Page 4 of 12 

8. After the resident’s family notified Wake Robin management in early May 2021 that at 
least $3,000 of unauthorized charges were made on the resident’s credit card, Wake 
Robin management began its investigation into the matter.  Wake Robin reported this 
matter to the Shelburne VT Police Department and the Vermont Board of Nursing/Office 
of Professional Regulation.  Department Dept. Ex. 1, pp. 2, 12-13. 

 
9. In May 2021, Corporal Jon Marcoux of the Shelburne VT Police Department began his 

investigation of the unauthorized charges; and on May 26, 2021, he was able to confirm 
with Wake Robin staff Respondent’s identification via surveillance photos.  Dept. Ex. 1, 
pp. 2, 47-50, 56-57. 

 
10. After several unsuccessful attempts to contact Respondent, the Vermont Board of 

Nursing’s investigator, Dennis Menard, was able to reach Respondent on August 12, 
2021.  He interviewed Respondent by phone and recorded the same.  During this 
interview, Respondent admitted using the resident’s credit card at multiple businesses, 
but denied that she had stolen the card.  Dept. Ex. 1, pp. 2-4, 52-53, 57. 

 
11. On August 13, 2021, Dennis Menard reported his investigative findings to Corporal 

Marcoux.  Dept. Ex. 1, pp. 3, 57. 
 
12. On August 18, 2021, after numerous and unsuccessful attempts to interview Respondent, 

Corporal Marcoux submitted a formal request to the VT’s State Attorney’s Office for an 
arrest warrant for Respondent.  Dept. Ex. 1, pp. 56-59. 

 
13. Respondent fraudulently charged more than $5,000 to the resident’s credit card.  Dept. 

Ex. 1, pp. 1-2, 5, 55, 62.   
 
14. On September 13, 2021, the Vermont Board of Nursing conducted an electronic hearing 

regarding Respondent’s alleged fraudulent use of a Wake Robin resident’s credit card.  
Respondent appeared at the hearing and represented herself.  Dept. Ex. 1, pp. 3, 60-63.    

 
15. On September 16, 2021, the Vermont Board of Nursing issued a Vermont Order 

suspending Respondent’s ability to practice nursing in Vermont based, in part upon 
findings that an emergency action was necessary to prevent patient harm and to protect 
the public in connection with the misuse of a credit card belonging to a resident of Wake 
Robin. 

 
16. Respondent failed to report to the Department, as required by Conn. Gen. Stat. § 19a-

12e(e), the disciplinary action taken by the Vermont Board of Nursing under the Vermont 
Order.   

 
 
 
 
 
 



  Page 5 of 12 

IV 
 

Discussion and Conclusions of Law 

 
 The Department bears the burden of proof by a preponderance of the evidence in this 

matter.  Jones v. Connecticut Medical Examining Board, 309 Conn. 727, 739-740 (2013).                 

The Department sustained its burden of proof with regard to all of the allegations contained in 

the Charges.  Findings of Fact (“FF”) 1-16. 

Conn. Gen. Stat. § 20-99 provides, in pertinent part, that:  

(a) The Board . . . .   shall have jurisdiction to hear all charges of conduct which fails to 
conform to the accepted standards of the nursing profession brought against persons 
licensed to practice nursing.  After holding a hearing . . . .  said board, if it finds such 
person to be guilty, may revoke or suspend his or her license or take any of the 
actions set forth in section 19a-17  .  .  .  . 

 
(b) Conduct which fails to conform to the accepted standards of the nursing profession 

includes, but is not limited to, the following: . . . . (2) illegal conduct, incompetence 
or negligence in carrying out usual nursing functions; . . . (6) fraud or material 
deception in the course of professional services or activities. 

 
Conn Gen. Stat. § 19a-17 provides, in pertinent part, that: 

(a) Each board or commission, . . .and the Department of Public Health . . .may take any     
of the following actions, . . .based on conduct that occurred prior or subsequent to the 
issuance of a license upon finding the existence of good cause. . .(1) Revoke a 
practitioner’s license; . . . 

 
(c ) Such board or commission . . .where appropriate may summarily suspend a     

practitioner’s license in advance of a final adjudication or during the appeals process 
if such board or commission finds that a practitioner represents a clear and immediate 
danger to the public health and safety if he/she is allowed to continue to practice.  

 
(f)  Such board . . . . may take disciplinary action against a practitioner’s license or         

permit as a result of the practitioner having been subject to disciplinary action . . . .              
by a duly authorized professional disciplinary agency of any state . . . . 

 
 

 

 

 



  Page 6 of 12 

Specifically, under Conn. Gen. Stat. § 19a-17(f), the CT Board can discipline the license 

of a nurse that has been disciplined by another state.  Additionally, under Conn. Gen. Stat. §§ 20-

99(b)(2) and (6), the CT Board can discipline the license of a nurse who “fails to conform to the 

accepted standards of practice of the nursing profession, including, but not limited to, illegal 

conduct, incompetence or negligence in carrying out usual nursing functions and fraud or 

material deception in the course of professional services or activities.”   

The evidence demonstrates that Respondent was hired as a travel nurse for a 12-week  

contract that ran from March 10, 2021, through June 12, 2021.  At that time, Respondent did not 

hold a Vermont nursing license, but she was authorized to practice in Vermont pursuant to Act 6 

of the 2021 Session Laws of the State of Vermont by virtue of having a Connecticut nursing 

license in good standing.  FF 2.  Respondent was assigned primarily to work in the Memory Care 

unit at Wake Robin.  FF 3.   

One of the residents in Respondent’s care was a 91-year-old dementia patient, who had 

numerous chronic conditions.  The resident had lived at Wake Robin for 18 years, seven of those 

years in the Memory Care Unit due to his slow, but continuous cognitive decline.  Dept. Ex. 1, 

pp. 20-24, 27-30.  The Wake Robin staff was not aware that he had a credit card in his 

possession.  The resident had no access to a computer or the internet and had not used his credit 

card for any purchases since March 2020.  FF 4.  Respondent used the resident’s credit card for 

the first time on April 11, 2021.  Between April 11, 2021, and April 28, 2021, Respondent made 

fraudulent charges to this card more than 14 times.  The amount charged was at least $3,505.                

FF 5.   

On May 3, 2021, the resident’s daughter froze his bank account.  FF 6.  On May 5 and 

May 6, 2021, Respondent’s attempts to charge $637.37 were declined after the resident’s 

daughter had contacted his bank and had frozen the account.  FF 7.  

After the resident’s family notified Wake Robin management in early May 2021 that at 

least $3,000 of unauthorized charges were made on the resident’s credit card, Wake Robin 

management began its investigation into the matter.  Wake Robin reported this matter to the 

Shelburne VT Police Department and the Vermont Board of Nursing/Office of Professional 

Regulation.  FF 8.   

In May 2021, Corporal Jon Marcoux of the Shelburne VT Police Department began his 

investigation of the unauthorized charges; and on May 26, 2021, he was able to confirm with 



  Page 7 of 12 

Wake Robin staff Respondent’s identification via surveillance photos.  FF 9.  After several 

unsuccessful attempts to contact Respondent, the Vermont Board of Nursing’s investigator, 

Dennis Menard, was able to reach Respondent on August 12, 2021.  He interviewed Respondent 

by phone and recorded the same.  During this interview, Respondent admitted using the 

resident’s credit card at multiple businesses, but denied that she had stolen the card.  FF 10.  

Respondent denied to the investigator that the amount was $5,000, but admitted to the 

investigator that she spent about $2,000 on the credit card.  Dept. Ex. 1, p. 2.   

On August 13, 2021, Dennis Menard reported his investigative findings to Corporal 

Marcoux.  FF 11.  On August 18, 2021, after numerous and unsuccessful attempts to interview 

Respondent, Corporal Marcoux submitted a formal request to the VT’s State Attorney’s Office 

for an arrest warrant for Respondent.  FF 12.  

Respondent fraudulently charged more than $5,000 to the resident’s credit card.  FF 13.   

Respondent testified that her coworker “Emma”1 gave her the resident’s credit card.  The 

card was in very poor condition, the magnetic strip was worn, and the name of the cardholder 

was illegible.  Dept. Ex. 1, p. 58.  However, the chip in the card still worked.  Emma told 

Respondent that she had ordered a new card but in the meantime, she needed cash and gift cards 

that could be purchased on the credit card.  Respondent testified that she did not know that 

Emma had stolen the card from the resident.  Tr. pp. 47, 51-53.    

Respondent further testified that Emma told her that she could no longer get cash 

advances on the card, so she and Emma worked out an arrangement in which Respondent would 

purchase items on the credit card and Respondent would pay Emma in cash a discounted amount 

rather than the actual cost of the purchased item.  Respondent claimed that she used the card for 

gas, food, wine, cigarettes, sneakers, clothing and other items she did not really need.  

Respondent testified that the whole scheme started when she and Emma were shopping.  Emma 

offered Respondent the use of the credit card because Respondent had forgotten to bring her 

wallet with her.  Tr. pp. 48-60, 64.  Respondent also claimed that Emma conveniently excused 

herself to go to the restroom when Respondent was in a line to pay for the purchases.  Tr. p. 57; 

Dept. Ex. 1, pp. 2- 4, 62.  Although Corporal Marcoux confirmed that a nurse named Emma also 

worked as a travel nurse at Wake Robin during the same period that Respondent was also 

 
1 According to the investigative record, “Emma”  moved back to Jamaica after her travel contract terminated.               
Dept. Ex. 1, p. 2. 



  Page 8 of 12 

assigned to work at Wake Robin, he informed Respondent that Emma did not appear in any of 

the surveillance video with Respondent.  He also informed Respondent that he could not 

corroborate Respondent’s claims about Emma’s involvement and he could not corroborate that 

Emma accompanied her at the times that Respondent made such fraudulent transactions.               

Dept. Ex. 1, pp. 3-5; 58-59, 64-65.    

As a mandated reporter, Sarah Hutchins, Director of Nursing at Wake Robin, reported 

Respondent’s alleged misconduct to the Vermont Board of Nursing/Office of Professional 

Regulation, in addition to the Shelburne VT Police Department.  Dept. Ex. 1, p. 1. 

On September 13, 2021, the Vermont Board of Nursing conducted an electronic hearing 

regarding Respondent’s alleged fraudulent use of a Wake Robin resident’s credit card.  

Respondent appeared at the hearing and represented herself.  FF 14.  

On September 16, 2021, the Vermont Board of Nursing issued a Vermont Order 

suspending Respondent’s ability to practice nursing in Vermont based, in part upon findings that 

an emergency action was necessary to prevent patient harm and to protect the public in 

connection with the misuse of a credit card belonging to a resident of Wake Robin.  FF 15.   

Pursuant to Conn. Gen. Stat. §§ 19a-12e(e) a health care professional shall report to the 

Department any disciplinary action taken against her license by a duly authorized professional 

disciplinary agency of any state, not later than 30 days after such action.  Respondent failed to 

report to the Department, as required by Conn. Gen. Stat. § 19a-12e(e), the Vermont Order in 

which the Vermont Board of Nursing took disciplinary action taken against her license.              

FF 16.  

Respondent’s failure to report to the Department the legal actions taken by the Vermont 

Board of Nursing/Office of Professional Regulation in 2021 violated the provisions of §§ 19a-

12e(e).  The record establishes that Respondent participated in the September 13, 2021, hearing.  

On or after September 16, 2021, Respondent received the Office of Professional Regulation’s 

final decision.  Dept. Ex. 1, pp. 60-63. 

Ultimately, the Department established by a preponderance of the evidence that 

Respondent’s practice as a travel nurse in Shelburne, VT fell below the standard of care in one          

or more ways, including, but not limited to her misappropriation and fraudulent use of a 

resident’s credit card, illegal conduct and theft, fraud, and material deception in the course of           

her nursing duties and care of the resident in Wake Robin.  Thus, the Board concludes that 



  Page 9 of 12 

Respondent’s conduct, as alleged in the Charges constitutes grounds for disciplinary action 

pursuant to Conn. Gen. Stat. §§ 20-99(b)(2) and (6), and §§ 19a-12e(e), and 19a-17(a), (c) and 

(f).  

Order 

    
Based on the record in this case, the above findings of fact and conclusions of law, and 

pursuant to the authority vested in it by Conn. Gen. Stat. §§ 19a-17( a)(c) and (f), 20-99(b)(2) 

and (6), the Board finds that the conduct alleged and proven warrants the disciplinary action 

imposed by this Order, as set for the below:     

1. Respondent shall pay a civil penalty of $500 by certified or cashier’s check payable to 

“Treasurer, State of Connecticut.” The check shall reference the Petition Number on the 

face of the check and shall be payable within 30 days of the effective date of this 

Memorandum of Decision (“Decision”). 

2. Respondent’s license number 025783 to practice as a licensed practical nurse in the State 

of Connecticut is hereby reprimanded. 

3. Respondent’s license shall be placed on probation for a period of two years under the 

following terms and conditions.  If any of the conditions of probation are not met, 

Respondent’s licensed practical nurse license may be subject to disciplinary action 

pursuant to Conn. Gen. Stat. § 19a-17.   

A. During the period of probation, the Department shall pre-approve Respondent’s 

employment and/or change of employment within the nursing profession.  

B. Respondent shall not be employed as a nurse for a personnel provider service, 

assisted living services agency, homemaker-home health aide agency, or home 

health care agency, and shall not be self-employed as a nurse for the period of 

probation. 

C. Respondent shall provide a copy of this Decision to any and all employers if 

employed as a nurse during the probationary period.  The Department shall be 

notified in writing by any employer(s), within 30 days of the commencement of 

employment, as to receipt of a copy of this Decision.   

D. If employed as a nurse, Respondent shall cause employer reports to be submitted 

to the Department, by her immediate supervisor during the entire probationary 



  Page 10 of 12 

period.  Employer reports shall be submitted commencing with the report due on 

the first business day of month following employment as a nurse.  Employer 

reports shall be submitted monthly during the entire probationary period.  

E. The employer reports cited in Paragraph D above shall include documentation of 

Respondent’s ability to practice nursing safely and competently.  Employer 

reports shall be submitted directly to the Department at the address cited in 

Paragraph K below.   

F. Should Respondent’s employment as a nurse be involuntarily terminated or 

suspended, Respondent and her employer shall notify the Department within 72 

hours of such termination or suspension.  

G. In the event Respondent is not employed as a nurse for periods of 30 

consecutive days or longer, she shall notify the Department in writing.  Such 

periods of time shall not be counted in reducing the probationary period covered 

by this Order and such terms shall be held in abeyance.  During such time 

period, Respondent shall not be responsible for complying with the terms of 

probation of this Order.  In the event Respondent resumes the practice of 

nursing, she shall provide the Department with 15 days prior written notice. 

H. If Respondent pursues further training in any subject area that is regulated by the 

Department, Respondent shall provide a copy of this Memorandum of Decision 

to the educational institution or, if not an institution, to Respondent’s instructor.  

Such institution or instructor shall notify the Department in writing as to receipt 

of a copy of this Decision within 15 days of receipt.  Said notification shall be 

submitted directly to the Department at the address cited in Paragraph K below.  

  I. Within the first three months of the probationary period, Respondent shall    

successfully complete a course in professional ethics pre-approved by the 

Department.  Within 30 days of completion of the course, Respondent shall 

provide proof to the satisfaction of the Department of her successful completion 

of the course. 

J.        The Department must be informed in writing prior to any change of 

Respondent’s home or personal email address.  



  Page 11 of 12 

K.       All communications, payments if required, correspondence, and reports are to be 

addressed to:  

Practitioner Monitoring and Compliance Unit 
Department of Public Health 

Healthcare Quality and Safety Branch 
410 Capitol Avenue, MS #12HSR 

P. O. Box 340308 
Hartford CT 06134-0308 

 
4. Any deviation from the terms of probation, without prior written approval by the Board, 

shall constitute a violation of probation, which will be cause for an immediate hearing 

on charges of violating this Order.  Any finding that Respondent has violated this Order 

will subject Respondent to sanctions under Conn. Gen. Stat. § 19a-17(a) and (c), 

including but not limited to, the revocation of her license.  Any extension of time or 

grace period for reporting granted by the Board shall not be a waiver or preclude the 

Board’s right to take subsequent action.  The Board shall not be required to grant future 

extensions of time or grace periods.  Notice of revocation or other disciplinary action 

shall be sent to Respondent’s address of record on file with the Department, which is 

deemed to be the most current address that Respondent has reported to the Practitioner 

Licensing and Investigations Section of the Healthcare Quality and Safety Branch of the 

Department.  

 

5. The execution of this document has no bearing on any criminal liability without the 

written consent of the Director of the Medicaid Fraud Control Unit or the State’s 

Attorney’s Office where the allegation occurred or the Bureau Chief of the applicable 

unit in the Chief State’s Attorney’s Office.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  Page 12 of 12 

This Order becomes effective and the two-year probation of Respondent’s licensed practical 

nurse license no. 025783 shall commence on the date of signature.  

 

The Board hereby informs Respondent, Lisa Simon, and the Department of this decision.   

 

Dated at Waterbury, Connecticut this _____ day of ________________,2023.   

     BOARD OF EXAMINERS FOR NURSING 

 
     By        
          Patricia C. Bouffard, D.N.Sc., Chair  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



1 
 

STATE OF CONNECTICUT 
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH 

HEALTHCARE QUALITY AND SAFETY BRANCH 
 
In re:  Christine Trombino                Petition No. 2020-895 
            
         April 14, 2023 

 
DEPARTMENT’S MOTION FOR A CONTINUANCE  

 
 
The Department of Health (hereinafter “the Department”) hereby moves for a 
continuance of the April 19, 2023 hearing in the above matter. 
 
As grounds for this motion the Department states as follows: 
 
A Voluntary Agreement not to Reinstate Affidavit has been agreed to by the respondent 
and a Motion to Withdraw Charges will be presented to the Board of Examiners for 
Nursing in this, or in an upcoming board meeting. 
 
Wherefore, the Department requests that this Motion for Continuance of the hearing is 
granted.  
      
     Respectfully submitted, 
 
     THE DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH 
 
     Aden T. Baume              
     Aden T. Baume, Staff Attorney                                           

  Office of Legal Compliance 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CERTIFICATION 
 
I certify that on this 14th day of April, 2023, a copy of the foregoing was sent by email to 
Christine Trombino (ctrombino@1113@gmail.com) and to the Public Health Hearing 
Office (phho.dph@ct.gov)  
 

Aden T. Baume              
 Aden T. Baume, Staff Attorney                                           

  Office of Legal Compliance 

mailto:ctrombino@1113@gmail.com
mailto:phho.dph@ct.gov


2 
 

ORDER 
 

The foregoing motion having been duly considered by the Connecticut Board of 

Examiners for Nursing, it is hereby GRANTED / DENIED. 

 

Dated this     day of     , 2023 at Hartford, Connecticut. 
 
 
 
 
               
       Board of Examiners for Nursing 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



   

CONSENT ORDER COVER SHEET 

 

 

In re:  Lisa N. Haut, A.P.R.N., R.N.    Petition Nos. 2021-1193 and 2022-899 

 

 

1. Lisa N. Haut of Warren, Connecticut ("respondent") graduated from St. Joseph’s College 

and was issued a Connecticut advanced practice registered nurse license in 1997. 

Respondent was issued a Connecticut registered nurse license in 1986. She received her 

initial nursing degree from County College of Morris in Randolph, NJ. 

 

2. Respondent’s Connecticut nursing licenses have not been previously disciplined. 

 

3. The Department alleges that from approximately June 2021 until on or about December 6, 

2021, respondent’s conduct failed to conform to the accepted standards of the nursing 

profession in that she violated professional boundaries with patient #1 by treating patient #1 

and allowing patient #1 to participate in a clinical internship at respondent’s practice for 

patient #1’s undergraduate studies and/or by acting as patient #1’s clinical supervisor; and/or 

engaged in unprofessional or unethical conduct. 

   

4. The proposed Consent Order provides for a six (6) month probationary period for respondent 

to successfully complete coursework in professional ethics and boundaries, pre-approved by 

the Department.  

 

5. The Department and respondent respectfully request that the Board of Examiners for 

Nursing accept the proposed Consent Order. 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE:  This document and all attachments may contain information 

that is confidential or privileged.  Please do not disseminate, distribute or copy the contents or 

discuss with parties who are not directly involved in this petition. Thank you. 



Page 1 of 7 

STATE OF CONNECTICUT 

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH 

HEALTHCARE QUALITY AND SAFETY BRANCH 

In re:  Lisa N. Haut, RN, APRN  Petition Nos.  2021-1193 and 2022-899 

CONSENT ORDER 

WHEREAS,  Lisa N. Haut ("respondent") of Warren, Connecticut, has been issued license number 

R40235 to practice as a registered nurse and license number 001512 to practice as an advanced 

practice registered nurse by the Connecticut Department of Public Health ("the Department") 

pursuant to Chapter 378 of the General Statutes of Connecticut, as amended; and,  

WHEREAS, the Department alleges that: 

1. From approximately June 2021 until on or about December 6, 2021, respondent’s conduct

failed to conform to the accepted standards of the nursing profession in that she, without

limitation:

a. violated professional boundaries with patient #1 by treating patient #1 and allowing

patient #1 to participate in a clinical internship at respondent’s practice for patient

#1’s undergraduate studies and/or by acting as patient #1’s clinical supervisor; and/or

b. engaged in unprofessional and/or unethical conduct.

4. The above-described facts constitute grounds for disciplinary action pursuant to the General

Statutes of Connecticut, §20-99(b), including but not limited to §§20-99(b)(2).

WHEREAS, respondent, in consideration of this Consent Order, has chosen not to contest the above 

allegations of wrongdoing, but while admitting no guilt or wrongdoing,  agrees that for the purposes 

of this or any future proceedings before the Board of Examiners for Nursing ("the Board"), this 



Page 2 of 7 

Consent Order shall have the same effect as if proven and ordered after a full hearing pursuant to 

§§19a-9, 19a-10, and 20-99(a) of the General Statutes of Connecticut.

NOW THEREFORE, pursuant to §19a-17 and §20-99(a) of the General Statutes of Connecticut, 

respondent hereby stipulates and agrees to the following: 

1. Respondent waives respondent’s right to a hearing on the merits of this matter.

2. Respondent shall comply with all federal and state statutes and regulations applicable to

respondent’s profession.

3. Respondent's Connecticut advanced practice registered nurse license number 001512 and

registered nurse license number R40235 shall be placed on probation for a period of six (6)

months under the following terms and conditions:  respondent shall attend and successfully

complete coursework in professional ethics and boundaries, pre-approved by the Department.

Within fifteen (15) days of the completion of such coursework, respondent shall provide the

Department with proof, to the Department’s satisfaction,  of the successful completion of such

coursework. Respondent’s probation shall terminate upon the Department’s written

satisfaction of the successful completion of the coursework required by this paragraph.

4. All correspondence and reports shall be addressed to:

Practitioner Compliance and Monitoring Unit 

Department of Public Health 

410 Capitol Avenue, MS #12HSR 

P.O. Box 340308 

Hartford, CT 06134-0308 

5. Respondent shall pay all costs necessary to comply with this Consent Order.



Page 3 of 7 

6. Any alleged violation of any provision of this Consent Order may result in the following

procedures at the discretion of the Department:

a. The Department shall notify respondent in writing by first-class mail that the term(s) of

this Consent Order have been violated, provided that no prior written consent for

deviation from said term(s) has been granted.

b. Said notification shall include the acts or omission(s) which violate the term(s) of this

Consent Order.

c. Respondent shall be allowed fifteen (15) days from the date of the mailing of

notification required in paragraph 6a above to demonstrate to the satisfaction of the

Department that respondent has complied with the terms of this Consent Order or, in the

alternative, that respondent has cured the violation in question.

d. If respondent does not demonstrate compliance or cure the violation within the fifteen

(15) days specified in the notification of violation to the satisfaction of the Department,

respondent shall be entitled to a hearing before the Board which shall make a final 

determination of the disciplinary action to be taken. 

e. Evidence presented to the Board by either the Department or respondent in any such

hearing shall be limited to the alleged violation(s) of the term(s) of this Consent Order.

7. Any violation of the terms of this Consent Order without prior written approval by the

Department shall constitute grounds for the Department to seek revocation of respondent's

nursing licenses following notice and an opportunity to be heard.

8. Any extension of time or grace period for reporting granted by the Department shall not be a

waiver or preclude the Department's right to act at a later time.  The Department shall not be

required to grant future extensions of time or grace periods.



Page 4 of 7 

9. Legal notice of any action shall be deemed sufficient if sent to respondent's last known address

of record reported to the Practitioner Licensing and Investigations Section of the Healthcare

Quality and Safety Branch of the Department.

10. This Consent Order is effective on the first day of the month immediately following the month

in which this Consent Order is approved and accepted by the Board.

11 Respondent understands this Consent Order is a matter of public record.

12. Respondent understands and agrees that the Department’s allegations as contained in this

Consent Order shall be deemed true in any subsequent proceeding before the Board in which

respondent’s compliance with this same Consent Order or with Connecticut General Statutes

§20-99(b), as amended, is at issue.  Further, respondent understands that any discipline

imposed by this Consent Order shall be reported to the National Practitioner Data Bank 

maintained by the United States Department of Health and Human Services and that all 

disciplinary actions will appear on respondent’s profile pursuant to Connecticut General 

Statutes §20-13j. 

13. In the event respondent violates a term of this Consent Order, respondent agrees immediately

to refrain from practicing as a nurse, upon request by the Department, for a period not to

exceed forty-five (45) days.  Respondent further agrees that failure to cooperate with the

Department in its investigation during said forty-five (45) day period shall constitute grounds

for the Department to seek a summary suspension of respondent's nursing licenses.  In any

such summary action, respondent stipulates that failure to cooperate with the Department's

investigation shall be considered by the Board and shall be given due weight by the Board in

determining whether respondent’s conduct constitutes a clear and immediate danger as

required pursuant to Connecticut General Statutes §§4-182(c) and 19a-17(c). Respondent



Page 5 of 7 

understands that the Board has complete and final discretion as to whether a summary 

suspension is ordered. 

14. In the event respondent violates any term of this Consent Order, said violation may also

constitute grounds for the Department to seek a summary suspension of respondent’s nursing

licenses before the Board.

15. This Consent Order and terms set forth herein are not subject to reconsideration, collateral

attack or judicial review under any form or in any forum. Respondent agrees that this Consent

Order shall not be subject to modification as a result of any claim that the terms contained

herein may result in action by third parties, including, but not limited to, healthcare facilities

and/or credentialing or licensure boards and respondent waives any right to seek

reconsideration or modification of this Consent Order pursuant to §4-181a of the General

Statutes of Connecticut without the express consent and agreement of the

Department.  Respondent assumes all responsibility for assessing such actions prior to the

execution of this document.   Further, this Consent Order is not subject to appeal or review

under the provisions of Chapters 54 and 368a of the General Statutes of Connecticut, provided

that this stipulation shall not deprive respondent of any other rights that respondent may have

under the laws of the State of Connecticut or of the United States.

16. Respondent permits a representative of the Department to present this Consent Order and its

factual basis to the Board.  Respondent agrees that the Board has complete and final discretion

as to whether an executed Consent Order is approved or accepted. Respondent waives any

claim of error that could be raised that is related to or arises during the Board’s review of any

documentation and discussions regarding whether to approve or reject this Consent Order

and/or a Board member’s participation during this process, through the Board member’s



Page 6 of 7 

review or comments, including but not limited to bias or reliance on evidence outside the 

administrative record if this matter proceeds to a hearing on a statement of charges resulting in 

a proposed decision and/or final decision by the Board. 

17. This Consent Order is a revocable offer of settlement, which may be modified by mutual

agreement or withdrawn by the Department at any time prior to its being executed by the last

signatory.

18. Respondent has consulted with her attorney prior to signing this Consent Order.

19. The execution of this document has no bearing on any criminal liability without the written

consent of the Director of the Medicaid Fraud Control Unit or the State’s Attorney’s Office

where the allegation occurred or Bureau Chief of the applicable unit in the Chief State’s

Attorney’s Office. The purpose of this Consent Order is to resolve the pending administrative

license disciplinary petitions only and is not intended to affect any civil or criminal liability or

defense.

20. This Consent Order embodies the entire agreement of the parties with respect to this case. All

previous communications or agreements regarding the subject matter of this consent order,

whether oral or written, between the parties are superseded unless expressly incorporated

herein or made a part hereof.

* 

* 

*



   

1, Lisa N. Haut, have read the above Consent Order, and I agree to the terms set forth therein. 1 

further declare the execution of this Consent Order to be my free act and deed. 

--1-W-/-12
isa N. Haut, RN, AP N) 

Subscribed and sworn to before me this  .3/ SI  day of  10c-itch  , 2023. 

tri-- L---41(v4 
Notary Public or pers n authorized 
by law to administer an oath or affirmation 

HARMONY MOSS 
Notary Public, Stale of Connecticut 

My Commission Expires 04130/2027 

The above Consent Order having been presented to the duly appointed agent of the Commissioner of 

the Department of Public Health on the 

hereby accepted. 

day of , 2023, it is 

Christian D. Andresen, MPH, CPH, Section Chief 
Practitioner Licensing and Investigations Section 
Healthcare Quality and Safety Branch 

The above Consent Order having been presented to the Connecticut Board of Examiners for Nursing 

on the day of , 2023, it is hereby ordered and accepted. 

BY: 
Connecticut Board of Examiners for Nursing 

Page 7 of 7

4th April



STATE OF CONNECTICUT 
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH 

HEALTHCARE QUALITY AND SAFETY BRANCH 

PREHEARING REVIEW COVER SHEET 

1. Kathleen Cataford (“respondent”) graduated from North Shore Community College in 1978 

and was licensed to practice nursing in Connecticut in 1999.

Her license has not been previously disciplined.

2. Respondent was employed as a school nurse.

3. On March 27, 2022, respondent placed a social media post stating that she was a school 

nurse and referenced one of her patients as an eleven-year-old girl on puberty blockers.  

The mother of the eleven-year-old girl was able to identify her child based on the social 

media post.

4. The Department and respondent, through her attorney, respectfully request the Board to 

review the attached documents and provide a recommendation regarding this petition.

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: The confidentiality of the attached documents is required 
under Federal and State law. All recipients must maintain strict confidentiality. All forms of 
disclosure, whether oral, written, or electronic, are strictly prohibited. 



SOC2 5/98    6B-1 

STATE OF CONNECTICUT 
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH 

HEALTHCARE QUALITY AND SAFETY BRANCH 

In re: Selena Marie Acocella, R.N. Petition Nos.  2020-977 
L.P.N. 2021-190

STATEMENT OF CHARGES 

Pursuant to the General Statutes of Connecticut, §§19a-10 and 19a-14, the Department of Public 
Health (hereinafter "the Department") brings the following charges against Selena Marie Acocella: 

1. Selena Marie Acocella of Meriden, Connecticut (hereinafter "respondent") is, and has been at
all times referenced in this Statement of Charges, the holder of Connecticut Registered Nurse
license number 171341 and Licensed Practical Nurse license number 040654.

2. At all relevant times, respondent was employed as a nurse at Aveanna Healthcare, a home
healthcare service company headquartered in Atlanta, Georgia.

3. From in or about January 2020 to in or about July 2020, respondent provided nursing care to
Patient #1, a minor child, from Patient #1’s home in Southington, Connecticut.

4. Beginning in or about June 2020, respondent engaged in an inappropriate relationship with
Patient #1’s father.

5. The above facts constitute grounds for disciplinary action pursuant to Connecticut General
Statutes §20-99(b), including, but not limited to §20-99(b)(2).

THEREFORE, the Department prays that: 

The Connecticut Board of Examiners for Nursing, as authorized by the General Statutes of 
Connecticut, §§20-99(b) and 19a-17, revoke or order other disciplinary action against the license 
of Selena Marie Acocella as it deems appropriate and consistent with law. 

Dated at Hartford, Connecticut this  day of  2022. 

____ 
Christian D. Andresen, MPH, Section Chief 
Practitioner Licensing & Investigations Section 
Healthcare Quality and Safety Branch 

12th December



1

STATE OF CONNECTICUT
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH

HEALTHCARE QUALITY AND SAFETY BRANCH

IN RE: SELENA MARIE ACOCELLA, R.N.,     : PETITION NOS. 2020-977
     L.P.N., : 2021-190

RESPONDENT. :
: FEBRUARY 13, 2023

ANSWER TO STATEMENT OF CHARGES

The Respondent, SELENA MARIE ACOCELLA, hereby states the following:

1. Admit.

2. The Respondent denies any knowledge sufficient to form a belief as to this

allegation, and thereby leaves the Department to its proof.

3. The Respondent denies any knowledge sufficient to form a belief as to this

allegation, and thereby leaves the Department to its proof.

4. Deny.

5. Deny.

THE PLAINTIFF

BY:____________/S/______________
WILLIAM S. PALMIERI
Law Offices of William S. Palmieri, LLC
110 Whitney Avenue
New Haven, CT 06510
(203) 623-3949
Wpalmieri@hotmail.com
Juris Number 409481

mailto:Wpalmieri@hotmail.com


2

CERTIFICATION

I hereby certify that a copy of the foregoing was electronically served on this

date, to all counsel and pro se parties of record as follows:

Selena Marie Acocella, R.N., L.P.N.
87 Cobblestone Lane
Meriden, CT 06450

Aden T. Baume, Staff Attorney
Department of Public Health
410 Capitol Avenue, MS #12LEG
P.O. Box 340308
Hartford, CT 06134
Aden.Baume@ct.gov

__________/S/______________ 
WILLIAM S. PALMIERI

mailto:Aden.Baume@ct.gov


STATE OF CONNECTICUT 
CONNECTICUT BOARD OF EXAMINERS FOR NURSING 

 
 

Selena Marie Acocella  
c/o William S. Palmieri, Esq.  
110 Whitney Avenue  
New Haven, CT 06510 

VIA EMAIL ONLY (wpalmieri@hotmail.com) 

 
 
RE: Selena Marie Acocella, RN and LPN - Petition Nos. 2020-977 and 2021-190 
 

NOTICE OF HEARING 
 

By authority of the General Statutes of Connecticut, Section 4-177, you are hereby notified to appear before 
the Board of Examiners for Nursing for a hearing on the attached Charges against you at 9:00 AM on March 
15, 2023 .  The hearing will be held by video conference during the meeting of the Board of Examiners for 
Nursing.  The link to connect to the hearing will be provided by email 3-5 days prior to the hearing.   
 
These Charges are being brought against you under the provisions of the Sections 19a-9, 19a-10 and 20-99(b) 
of the Connecticut General Statutes.  The hearing will be conducted in accordance with Chapter 54 of the 
General Statutes of Connecticut and Section 19a-9-1, et seq., of the Regulations of Connecticut State Agencies 
(Public Health Code). 
 
At the hearing you will have the opportunity to present your evidence, including witnesses and documents.  It 
will be your responsibility to provide the hearing connection link to any witnesses you may call. 
 
Filing an Answer; Failure to File Answer: 
 
You are required to file an answer to the attached Charges with the Department of Public Health within 14 
days from the date of this Notice of Hearing.  Please note: failure to file an Answer could result in the 
allegations being found to be true as stated, and the possibility that you will not be permitted to submit any 
evidence concerning the allegations.    
 
Representation by an Attorney: 
 
At the aforementioned hearing you may be represented by an attorney and present evidence on your behalf.  
Although you may represent yourself (pro se), you are urged to obtain the services of an attorney.   
 
Documents: 
 
If you intend to introduce documents into evidence, YOU MUST COMPLY WITH THE FOLLOWING 
REQUIREMENTS: 
 
Exhibits should be pre-marked for identification ( i.e. Department exhibit 1, Respondent exhibit A), page 
numbered, and properly redacted.  
The following information shall be redacted.   

(1) Date of birth 
(2) Mother’s maiden name 
(3) Motor vehicle operator’s license number 
(4) Social Security Number 
(5) Other government-issued identification number 
(6) Health insurance identification number 
(7) Financial account number 
(8) Security code or personal identification number (PIN) 

 



RE: Selena Marie Acocella, RN and LPN - Petition Nos. 2020-977 and 2021-190  Page 2 
 

Order Re:  Filings 
 

In preparation for this hearing you must, no later than March 1, 2023, provide the information specified in the 
attached Notice for Submissions. 

 
All communications to the Board shall be submitted in this fashion.  The Department or Respondent shall 
provide a copy of each document filed to Respondent or Department as the case may be and certify such to the 
Board.   
 
Failure to Appear: 
 
If you fail to appear at the hearing, upon proof that due notice was served upon you to appear, the Board may 
proceed in the same manner as though you were present in person.  The Board may hold a fact-finding 
meeting immediately following the close of the record. 
 
Please call 860-509-7566 as soon as possible if you have any questions about the hearing schedule.   
 
Dated at Hartford, Connecticut this   30th   day of January, 2023. 
 
For the Connecticut Board of Examiners for Nursing  
 

  /s/  Dianne Bertucio    
Dianne Bertucio, Interim Administrative Hearings Specialist 
 
 
c: Christian Andresen, Section Chief, Practitioner Licensing and Investigations 
 Aden Baume, Staff Attorney, Office of Legal Compliance 
 
 
 

The Department of Public Health is an equal opportunity provider and employer. 
 

If you require aid/accommodation to participate fully and fairly, 
 please contact the Public Health Hearing Office at 860-509-7566. 

 



Notice for Submissions 
 

The hearing in the matter of: Selena Marie Acocella, RN and LPN has been scheduled for 
March 15, 2023, and will be conducted remotely through Microsoft Teams / teleconference. 

On or before March 1, 2023, you must provide the following by electronic mail response to the hearing 
office: 

1. Electronically Pre-filed exhibits – Exhibits should be pre-marked for identification ( i.e. 
Department exhibit 1, Respondent exhibit A), page numbered, and properly redacted for 
any personally identifiable information. Parties and/or counsel should stipulate to any 
exhibits and facts not in dispute and provide any objections to proposed exhibits. All 
exhibits also must be sent to the opposing party or counsel. 

2. Witness List – identify any persons expected to be called to testify. Be sure to notify your 
witnesses that they will be required to remain available and in attendance for the full 
duration of the hearing. (This will eliminate the difficulty of trying to reach witnesses 
again for rebuttal or additional examination later in the hearing). Witness lists also must 
be sent to the opposing party or counsel. 

3. Photo Identification: Self-represented parties should provide a copy of a government-issued 
photo identification for yourself and any witnesses you expect to call. Photo identification is 
not required for parties represented by counsel, or witnesses called to testify for parties 
represented by counsel. 

4. Electronic Mail (“e-mail”) addresses for parties, counsel and witnesses. All e-mail 
addresses must be current and able to receive all notices relating to this matter. 

5. Cellphone numbers for all parties, counsel, and witnesses at which they can be reached 
and respond to text message during the hearing (in the event a connection is lost). 

6. A statement whether executive session may be required to receive testimony 
containing personal protected information, and if so, what that information may be 
(treatment records, patient records, therapy reports). Parties or counsel should identify 
any witnesses listed in response to #2 above who may provide testimony relating to 
personal protected information requiring executive session. 

7. A statement whether an interpreter will be needed for the proceeding. 

This is a formal public hearing. It will be video recorded and posted on the DPH website for 
public viewing*. All hearing participants should appear in proper attire, in proper surroundings, 
and remove any potential distractions. 

In preparation, please make sure all of your devices are fully functioning and properly charged. All 
participants are required to have video and audio functions on when testifying or speaking. 

Documents are not required to be shared on-screen during hearings, as all parties, attorneys, board 
members and/or hearing officers have been provided such documents. Parties and/or attorneys who 
elect to share documents for viewing on-screen during the hearing must do so from their own 
equipment. Confidential documents should only be shared in executive session. Hearing Office staff 
/ Teams administrators are not responsible for the sharing of submitted documents in the 
presentation of a party’s case. 

Our office will contact you again 3 to 5 calendar days prior to the hearing to provide you with any 
further instructions and a Microsoft Teams link / phone number and code to enter the hearing. 

Should you have any question please contact the hearing office at phho.dph@ct.gov. 

*The executive session portion of any hearing will not be recorded on video or posted for public 
viewing. 

mailto:phho.dph@ct.gov


1 
 

STATE OF CONNECTICUT 
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH 

HEALTHCARE QUALITY AND SAFETY BRANCH 
 
In re: Selena Marie Acocella, R.N.     Petition Nos.  2020-977 
    L.P.N.      2021-190 
            
March 8, 2023 

 
DEPARTMENT’S REQUEST FOR A CONTINUANCE  

 
 
The Department of Health (hereinafter “the Department”) hereby requests a continuance 
of the March 15, 2022 hearing in the above matter. As grounds for this request the 
Department states as follows: 
 
The Department intends to call Witness #1 in this matter, the Department investigator 
assigned to this petition. However, this witness has become unavailable on that date. The 
Department requests this matter to be placed on the April agenda of the Board of 
Examiners for Nursing. 
 
Wherefore, the Department prays that this Request for Continuance of the hearing is 
granted.  
      
     Respectfully submitted, 
 
     THE DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH 
 
     Aden T. Baume              
     Aden T. Baume, Staff Attorney                                           

  Office of Legal Compliance 
 
 
 
 
 

CERTIFICATION 
 
I certify that on this 8th day of March, 2023, a copy of the foregoing was sent by email to 
Attorney William Palmieri (wpalmieri@yahoo.com) and to Jennifer Zakrzewski 
(jennifer.zakrzewski@ct.gov), Administrative Hearings Specialist in the Department’s 
Public Health Hearing Office.  
 

Aden T. Baume              
 Aden T. Baume, Staff Attorney                                           

     Office of Legal Compliance 

mailto:wpalmieri@yahoo.com
mailto:jennifer.zakrzewski@ct.gov


 

 
 

  

Phone: (860) 509-7101 • Fax: (860) 509-7111   
Telecommunications Relay Service 7-1-1 

410 Capitol Avenue, P.O. Box 340308 
Hartford, Connecticut  06134-0308 

www.ct.gov/dph 
Affirmative Action/Equal Opportunity Employer 

 

BOARD OF EXAMINERS FOR NURSING 
 

March 10, 2023 
 
 

Selena Marie Acocella  
c/o William S. Palmieri, Esq.  
110 Whitney Avenue  
New Haven, CT 06510 
 

Via Email Only: (wpalmieri@hotmail.com) 
 

Aden Baume, Staff Attorney    
Department of Public Health 
410 Capitol Avenue, MS #12LEG 
PO Box 340308 
Hartford, CT  06134-0308 
 

Via Email Only 

 
 
RE: Selena Marie Acocella, RN and LPN - Petition Nos. 2020-977 and 2021 
 

RULING ON REQUEST FOR CONTINUANCE 
 
In an email dated March 8, 2023, the Department requested a continuance of the hearing scheduled for March 
15, 2023.  Without objection from respondent’s counsel, the Department’s respondent’s request is GRANTED. 
 
The hearing is rescheduled to Wednesday, April 19, 2023, at 9:00 a.m.  The hearing will be held by video 
conference during the meeting of the Board of Examiners for Nursing. 
 
FOR: BOARD OF EXAMINERS FOR NURSING 
 

____/s/__Dianne Bertucio____________________________________ 
Dianne Bertucio, Interim Administrative Hearings Specialist/Board Liaison 

 Department of Public Health 
 410 Capitol Avenue, MS #13PHO 
 PO Box 340308 
 Hartford, CT  06134-0308 
 Tel.  (860) 509-7566  FAX (860) 707-1904 



1

STATE OF CONNECTICUT
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH

HEALTHCARE QUALITY AND SAFETY BRANCH

IN RE: SELENA MARIE ACOCELLA, R.N.,     : PETITION NOS. 2020-977
     L.P.N., : 2021-190

RESPONDENT. :
: MARCH 1, 2023

OBJECTIONS TO DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH’S PROPOSED EXHIBITS

The Respondent, SELENA MARIE ACOCELLA, hereby provides the following

OBJECTIONS to the proposed Exhibits of the Department of Public Health.

Exhibit 1 for Identification: Objection.  Relevance; hearsay.

Exhibit 2 for Identification: Objection.  Relevance; lack of foundation.

Exhibit 3 for Identification: Objection.  Relevance; lack of foundation.

Exhibit 5 for Identification: Objection.  Failure to disclose expert testimony; relevance;

materiality; lack of foundation for expert testimony.

Exhibit 6 for Identification: Objection.  Failure to disclose expert testimony; relevance;

materiality; lack of foundation for expert testimony, unduly

prejudicial.

Exhibit 8 for Identification: Objection.  Failure to disclose expert testimony; cumulative:

lack of foundation for expert testimony; hearsay.

Exhibit 9 for Identification: Objection.  Relevance; materiality; lack of foundation; unduly

prejudicial.

Exhibit 10 for Identification: Objection.  Relevance; materiality; lack of foundation;            

                      unduly prejudicial.     



2

The Respondent reserves her right to supplement the Objections stated herein,

and requests Argument thereon prior to the commencement of the Hearing in the

instant matter.

THE RESPONDENT

BY:____________/S/______________
WILLIAM S. PALMIERI
Law Offices of William S. Palmieri, LLC
110 Whitney Avenue
New Haven, CT 06510
(203) 623-3949
Wpalmieri@hotmail.com
Juris Number 409481

CERTIFICATION

I hereby certify that a copy of the foregoing was electronically served on this

date, to all counsel and pro se parties of record as follows:

Aden T. Baume, Staff Attorney
Department of Public Health
410 Capitol Avenue, MS #12LEG
P.O. Box 340308
Hartford, CT 06134
Aden.Baume@ct.gov

__________/S/______________ 
WILLIAM S. PALMIERI

mailto:Wpalmieri@hotmail.com
mailto:Aden.Baume@ct.gov


1 
 

STATE OF CONNECTICUT 
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH 

HEALTHCARE QUALITY AND SAFETY BRANCH 
 
In re: Selena Marie Acocella, R.N.     Petition Nos.  2020-977 
    L.P.N.      2021-190 
 
March 9, 2023           
  

 
DEPARTMENT’S RESPONSE TO RESPONDENT’S 

OBJECTIONS TO DEPARTMENT PROPOSED EXHIBITS 
 
 

On January 30, 2023, the Connecticut Board of Examiners for Nursing (“Board”) 

ordered a hearing to be held in the above captioned matter for March 15, 2023 and set a 

deadline for March 1, 2023 for the filing of exhibits. On March 1, 2023, the Department of 

Public Health (“Department”) filed a batch of ten exhibits with the Public Health Hearing 

office, and Selena Acocella, L.P.N., R.N., (“respondent”) filed a batch of six exhibits and 

objected to several of the exhibits filed by the Department. The Department now responds to 

respondent’s objections.  

 

As to all objections on hearsay, the Uniform Administrative Procedure Act (“UAPA) 

allows for hearsay evidence so long as it is reliable and probative. One of respondent’s 

hearsay objections was for Department’s Exhibit 1, the Department’s investigative report. In 

this case, it is difficult to identify which declarant and which statement are specifically being 

objected to. Broadly, the investigative report is both highly reliable to describe the results of 

the Department’s investigation and probative as to the actions of the Department. But even if 

the investigative report is not reliable and probative, it is not hearsay because it not being 

offered to prove the truth of any matter asserted, but to show how the Department acquired 

the documents in its possession, and what the Department did with these documents, and is 

therefore not hearsay. Further, even if the investigative report was hearsay, it falls under the 

public record and report exception to the hearsay rule. However, since hearsay is allowed 

under the UAPA, the report should not be excluded.  

 



2 
 

Another Hearsay objection was for Department’s Exhibit 8, a visual representation of 

tabular data. This is also not hearsay because there is no declarant. The visualization is based 

on tabular computer generated data, and a computer that generates data is not a declarant. 

Further, even if there were a declarant, it also falls under the business records data hearsay 

exception. However, just as before, as hearsay is allowed under the UAPA, this exhibit 

should not be excluded.  

 

As to objections on foundation, the respondent suggests that there is insufficient 

foundation to show some unspecified prerequisite regarding the Department’s Exhibit 2, the 

petitioner’s complaint, Department’s Exhibit 3, the medical records of Patient #1, 

Department’s Exhibit 5, the American Nursing Association’s Code of Ethics, Department’s 

Exhibit 6 the National Council of State Boards of Nursing’s Practical Guidelines for Boards 

of Nursing on Sexual Misconduct Cases, Department’s Exhibit 8, a visual representation of 

tabular data, and Department’s Exhibit 9 and 10, the audio of a phone conversation. As 

respondent fails to identify the alleged missing prerequisite, and because any and all 

necessary prerequisites will be established at hearing, these documents should not be 

preemptively excluded.  

 

As to respondents objections to Department’s Exhibit 6 and 8 regarding failure to 

disclose expert testimony, the Department does not intend to call any expert witnesses at 

hearing. The authors of the publications submitted for consideration are not testifying, these 

publications are provided for consideration as to widely identified professional standards. All 

witnesses and exhibits have been identified in accordance with the Notice of Hearing dated 

February 1, 2023, and there is no additional requirement for expert witnesses imposed by the 

Notice of Hearing or the UAPA that has not been met. However, as previously stated, the 

Department does not intend to call any expert witnesses and so this objection must be 

overruled.  

 

As to objections regarding cumulativeness of Department’s Exhibit 8, a graphical 

representation of tabular data, the document in question is a visual aide only, intended to be 

used to describe what the evidence at the hearing will show in a way that is more visible and 



3 
 

understandable. It will be used to emphasize and reinforce facts the Department expects to 

show in a more easily conceptualized form. Visual aides are allowed under the UAPA, the 

data is relevant and material, and does not otherwise violate other rules of evidence. 

Therefore, the objection must be overruled.  

 

As to respondents’ objections to relevance and materiality regarding Department 

Exhibits 1, 2, 3, 5, 6, 9, and 10, all the documents identified in respondent’s objection speak 

to either if an inappropriate relationship occurred and/or if an inappropriate relationship 

existed, if it constitutes grounds for discipline. These are key issues identified in the filed 

Statement of Charges, which allege an inappropriate relationship that is grounds for 

discipline. Since these documents directly correlate to the charges, they are relevant and 

material, and so these objections must be overruled.  

 

Finally, as to objections regarding undue prejudice, this objection should be overruled 

because the probative value of the documents clearly outweighs any chance that the Board 

would be prejudiced. But even if this evidence was equally probative, or even if the 

prejudicial risk slightly outweighs the probative value, then these exhibits still must be 

allowed as evidence because the risk of prejudice must substantially outweigh the probative 

value. The burden of proof to show that the risk of prejudice substantially outweighs the 

probative value is on respondent, and respondent provided no evidence or argument that any 

risk of prejudice even exists. The probative value regarding the proposed exhibits is high and 

respondent has not met her burden to show the risk of prejudice substantially outweighs the 

probative value of these documents. The objection must be overruled. 

 

 

 
      
     Respectfully submitted, 
 
     THE DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH 
 
     Aden T. Baume              
     Aden T. Baume, Staff Attorney                                           

  Office of Legal Compliance 



4 
 

 
 
 

CERTIFICATION 
 

I certify that on this 9th day of March, 2023, a copy of the foregoing was sent by email to 

Attorney William Palmieri (wpalmieri@yahoo.com) and to Jennifer Zakrzewski 

(jennifer.zakrzewski@ct.gov), Administrative Hearings Specialist in the Department’s 

Public Health Hearing Office.  

 
Aden T. Baume              

 Aden T. Baume, Staff Attorney                                           
  Office of Legal Compliance 

mailto:wpalmieri@yahoo.com
mailto:jennifer.zakrzewski@ct.gov














STATE OF CONNECTICUT 
CONNECTICUT BOARD OF EXAMINERS FOR NURSING 

 
Nicole R. Slonski 
495 Laurel Hill Road 
Apartment 17D 
Norwich, CT 06360-4235 
 

VIA EMAIL ONLY (nslonski@gmail.com) 

Linda Fazzina 
Department of Public Health 
410 Capitol Avenue, MS #12LEG 
PO Box 340308 
Hartford, CT  06134-0308 

VIA EMAIL ONLY 

 
RE: Nicole R. Slonski, L.P.N. - Petition No. 2022-1019 
 

NOTICE OF RESCHEDULED HEARING 
 

The hearing in the above-referenced matter is rescheduled to April 19, 2023. 
 
The hearing will be held via Microsoft TEAMS during the meeting of the Board of Examiners for 
Nursing. 
 
In preparation for this hearing you must, no later than April 5, 2023, provide the information 
specified in the attached Notice for Submissions. 
 
The Summary Suspension of respondent’s licensed practical nurse license remains in effect. 
 
Absent extreme, unforeseen circumstances, no further continuance requests will be granted. 
 
FOR: BOARD OF EXAMINERS FOR NURSING 
 

____/s/__Dianne Bertucio____________________________________ 
 Dianne Bertucio, Interim Administrative Hearings Specialist/Board Liaison 
 Department of Public Health 
 410 Capitol Avenue, MS #13PHO 
 PO Box 340308 
 Hartford, CT  06134-0308 
 Tel.  (860) 509-7566  FAX (860) 707-1904 
 
 
 

The Department of Public Health is an equal opportunity provider and employer. 
 

If you require aid/accommodation to participate fully and fairly, 
 please contact the Public Health Hearing Office at 860-509-7566. 

 
  

mailto:nslonski@gmail.com


 
Notice for Submissions 

 
The hearing in the matter of: Nicole R. Slonski, L.P.N. has been rescheduled to April 19, 2023 
and will be conducted remotely through Microsoft Teams/teleconference. 
 
On or before April 5, 2023, you must provide the following by electronic mail response to the 
Department of Public Health, Public Health Hearing Office at phho.dph@ct.gov 
 

1. Electronically Pre-filed exhibits –  Exhibits should be pre-marked for identification 
( i.e. Department exhibit 1, Respondent exhibit A), page numbered, and properly 
redacted.  

 Parties and/or counsel should stipulate to any exhibits and facts not in dispute, 
and provide any objections to proposed exhibits.  All exhibits also must be sent to 
the opposing party or counsel. 

2. Witness List – identify any persons expected to be called to testify.  Be sure to 
notify your witnesses that they will be required to remain available and in 
attendance for the full duration of the hearing. (This will eliminate the difficulty of 
trying to reach witnesses again for rebuttal or additional examination later in the 
hearing).  Witness lists also must be sent to the opposing party or counsel. 

3. Photo Identification:  a copy of a government-issued photo identification of the 
parties and witnesses.   

4. Electronic Mail (“e-mail”) addresses for parties, counsel and witnesses.  All e-
mail addresses must be current and able to receive all notices relating to this 
matter. 

5. Cellphone numbers for all parties, counsel, and witnesses at which they can be 
reached and respond to text message during the hearing (in the event a 
connection is lost). 

6. A statement whether executive session may be required to receive testimony 
containing personal protected information, and if so, what that information may 
be (treatment records, patient records, therapy reports).  Parties or counsel 
should identify any witnesses listed in response to #2 above who may provide 
testimony relating to personal protected information requiring executive session. 

7. A statement whether an interpreter will be needed for the proceeding. 
 
This is a formal public hearing.  It will be video recorded and posted on the DPH website for 
public viewing.  All hearing participants should appear in proper attire, in proper surroundings, 
and remove any potential distractions. 
 
In preparation, please make sure all of your devices are fully functioning and properly charged.  
All participants are required to have video and audio functions on when testifying or speaking. 
Our office will contact you again 3 to 5 calendar days prior to the hearing to provide you with 
any further instructions and a Microsoft Teams link / phone number and code to enter the 
hearing. 
 
Should you have any question please contact the hearing office at phho.dph@ct.gov. 

*The executive session portion of any hearing will not be recorded on video or posted for public 
viewing. 

mailto:phho.dph@ct.gov
mailto:phho.dph@ct.gov


SOC2 5/98    6B-3 

STATE OF CONNECTICUT 
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH 

HEALTHCARE QUALITY AND SAFETY BRANCH 

In re:  Tiona Stewart, L.P.N.      Petition No. 2023-151 

STATEMENT OF CHARGES 

Pursuant to the General Statutes of Connecticut, §§19a-10 and 19a-14, the Department of Public 
Health (hereinafter "the Department") brings the following charges against Tiona Stewart: 

1. Tiona Stewart of Stratford, Connecticut (hereinafter "respondent") is, and has been at all times
referenced in this Statement of Charges, the holder of Connecticut registered nurse license
number 038404.

2. On or about December 15, 2021, the Connecticut State Board of Examiners for Nursing adopted
the Consent Order, Petition No. 2017-1275 (hereinafter "the Consent Order "), which placed
respondent’s nursing license on probation for two (2) years effective January 1, 2022.

3. The Consent Order was due, in part, to respondent submitting forged timesheets and receiving
compensation for hours she did not work, to misappropriating and/or attempting to
misappropriate patient property, and/or to being convicted of one or more counts of larceny. The
Consent Order required, in part, that:

a. Respondent provide a copy of the Consent Order to any and all employers if employed as
a nurse during the probationary period, and cause the Department to be notified in writing
by any employer within fifteen (15) days of the commencement of employment as to
receipt of a copy of the Consent Order;

b. Respondent not be employed as a nurse for a personnel provider service, assisted living
services agency, homemaker – home health aide agency, or home health care agency, and
not be self-employed as a nurse for the period of probation; and/or

c. Respondent notify the Department in writing of any change in employment within fifteen
(15) days of such change.

4. On or about October 12, 2022, respondent was hired at a staffing agency, Pro Med Staff,
(hereinafter “employer”) as an independent contractor.

5. Respondent violated the Consent Order in one or more of the following ways:

a. On or about October 27, 2022, she failed to provide her employer with a copy of the
Consent Order, and/or failed to cause the Department to be notified in writing by her
employer within fifteen (15) days of the commencement of employment as to receipt of a
copy of the Consent Order, in violation of paragraph 4B of the Consent Order;



SOC2 5/98    6B-4 

b. Was employed as a nurse for a personnel provider service, assisted living services
agency, homemaker – home health aide agency, or home health care agency, and/or was
self-employed as a nurse for the period of probation, in violation of paragraph 4C of the
Consent Order; and/or

c. On or about October 27, 2022, she failed to notify the Department in writing of any
change in employment within fifteen (15) days of such change in violation of paragraph
4D of the Consent Order.

6. Respondent’s conduct as described above constitutes a violation of the terms of probation as set
forth in the Consent Order, and subjects respondent’s license to revocation or other disciplinary
action authorized by Connecticut General Statutes, §§19a-17 and 20-99(b).

THEREFORE, the Department prays that: 

The Connecticut Board of Examiners for Nursing, as authorized by the General Statutes of 
Connecticut, §§20-99(b) and 19a-17, revoke or order other disciplinary action against the 
license of Tiona Stewart, L.P.N. as it deems appropriate and consistent with law. 

Dated at Hartford, Connecticut this  day of  2023. 

____ 
Christian D. Andresen, MPH, Section Chief 
Practitioner Licensing & Investigations Section 
Healthcare Quality and Safety Branch 

22nd February



SOC2 5/98    6B-2 

STATE OF CONNECTICUT 
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH 

HEALTHCARE QUALITY AND SAFETY BRANCH 

In re:  Tiona Stewart, L.P.N.      Petition No. 2023-151 

MOTION FOR SUMMARY SUSPENSION 

The Department of Public Health (hereinafter "the Department") hereby moves in accordance with 

the General Statutes of Connecticut §§4-182(c) and 19a-17(c) that the Connecticut Board of 

Examiners for Nursing summarily suspend the license of Tiona Stewart to practice nursing in 

Connecticut. This motion is based on the attached Statement of Charges, Affidavits and on the 

Department's information and belief that the continued practice of nursing represents a clear and 

immediate danger to the public health and safety. 

Dated at Hartford, Connecticut this  day of  2023. 

Christian D. Andresen, MPH, Section Chief 
Healthcare Quality and Safety Branch 

22nd February





April 3, 2023 

 

Hearing April 19,2019 

Re:Tiona Stewart LPN 

Petition No. 2023-151 

 

 

To who it may concern,  

 

I Tiona Stewart am respectfully writing in response to the allegations brought forth against me. I am 
currently employed at western rehab/civita care of danbury still through the agency and have been for 
years. I have been a Main charge nurse on one of their units since 2019, under the direction of a 
supervisor and DNS. I have remained focused on my job and out of trouble. I have been working 
effortlessly at my job and continue to do so. I have had no disciplinary actions. I have made sure I have 
gotten my quarterly reviews done as well. I joined Pro staff in hopes to bringing in extra income for my 
children, I have 2 kids in college, one graduated already in the process and one in her junior year, plus 2 
additional kids. “I am their sole provider”.   When I joined Pro Med was to ensure my kids had a roof 
over their head and food in their mouths. It was never my intention not to provide Pro med with my 
consent order, as I gave to the facility like I have done so with Western.  I only worked 4 shifts with them 
and haven’t picked up any others. Raquel had informed me that she wasn’t given paperwork and I 
explained to her, and Mrs. Sookram I have always given to facility in pass and was never an issue, so I 
thought it was ok. I have not worked outside of any facility. I know I am listed as an independent 
contractor, but as stated I only worked under supervision of a RN and a DNS, never privately, or in a 
homecare setting. I definitely was not trying to jeopardize my license; I love what I do and don’t' know 
what I would do without my nursing career.  I have my children to care for as well as my patients and 
will be lost without my job. I understand if I have to have a consequence for even 30 days but to take my 
license for ever, I think is a little harsh. I have learned my lesson and see the severity that can happen. I 
apologize to the board of nursing. 

 

Thanks for your time and understanding. 

 

Sincerely, 

Tiona Stewart LPN 

Tiona25@gmail.com 

(203)414-5007 

mailto:Tiona25@gmail.com







	AGENDA
	MINUTES
	June 15, 2022
	July 20, 2022
	November 16, 2022

	SCHOOL ISSUES
	Stone Academy Update - Sean Seeperstad, Office of Higher Education
	Unites States Department of Education
	Arizona College of Nursing
	CT Center for Nursing Workforce, Inc.
	Eastern Connecticut State University – Notice of Intent
	Griffin Hospital School of Allied Health Careers – Approval for Second Campus
	Goodwin University – Notice of Intent to Begin a Licensed Practical Nurse Program
	Quinnipiac School of Nursing – Application for Permanent Waiver (1)
	Quinnipiac School of Nursing – Application for Permanent Waiver (2)
	ReNurse Academy – Licensed Practical Nurse Refresher Course

	MEMORANDUMS OF DECISIONS
	Memorandum of Decision - Danielle Dragon, LPN
	Memorandum of Decision - Rachel Pisani, RN, APRN
	Memorandum of Decision - Lisa Simon, LPN

	MOTION FOR CONTINUANCE - Christine Trombino
	CONSENT ORDER - Lisa Haut, APRN, RN
	PREHEARING REVIEW - Kathleen Cataford LPN
	HEARINGS
	Hearing - Selena Marie Acocella, RN, LPN 
	Board Exhibits

	Hearing - Nicole R. Slonski, LPN
	Board Exhibits

	Hearing - Tiona Stewart, LPN
	Board Exhibits



